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WESTERN GUARANTY CORPORATION

Financial Statements
December 31, 2020
(with comparative figures as at and for the year ended December 31, 2019)
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STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The managemeni of WESTERN GUARANTY CORPORATION, is responsible for the
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements including the schedules
attached therein, for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, in accordance with
the prescrbed financial reporting framework indicated therein, and for such intemal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
staternents that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable matiers
related to going concem and using the going concem basis of accounting unless
management ether intends o liquidate the Company or io cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but ko do so.

The Board of Direclors is responsibie for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the financial statements including the
schedules attached therein, and submits the same 1o the stockholders.

R.R. Tan and Associates, CPAs the independent auditors appointed by the
stockholders as of December 31, 2020 and J.A. Banaria and Company, the independent
auditors appointed by the stockholders as of December 31, 2019, has audiled the
financial stalements of the Company in accordance with Philippine Standards on
Auditing, and in its report o the stockholders, has expressed s opinion on the faimess
of presentation upon completon of such audil.

CHOA SIU TiN TEHE::TA N. VERGARA

President Financial Comptroller

ATTY. LEVY . BANG
Chairman of the Board

Signed this 1st day of July, 2021.
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R. R. TAN & ASSOCIATES, CPAs e S, Pty o L

Tiel.: (532] BE38-3430 fo 32 Fax: (533) BS18-3430
e-mall ;@ wnlortan. et

FRC-BOA Reg. Mo, 0132, vald until Decemnber 31, 2021

SEC Accreditation Mo.0394-F, valid until July 23, H033

BiIR Accreditation Mo, 07-100015-001-2019, vakd uriil Seplember 12, 3022
IS Aponeditation Mo, 0132-1C, valid untl Novembar 14, 2024

Report of Independent Public Accountants

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
WESTERN GUARANTY CORPORATION

11" Floor, ETY Building, 484 Quintin Paredes St
Binondo, Manila

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinian

We have audited the financial statements of WESTERN GUARANTY CORPORATION
(the Company), which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31,
2020, and the statement of comprehansive income, statement of changes in equity and
statement of cash flows for the year then ended,. and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material
ragpects, the financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2020, and its
financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with
Philippine Financial Reporting Standard. (PFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PS5As).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Audior's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Elhics) tegether with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the Philippines, and we have
fulfilled our ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Matter

The financial statemeniz of WESTERN GUARANTY CORPORATION for the year
ended December 31, 2019 were examined by another auditor whose report dated June
2, 2020 expressed an unmodified opinion thereon.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged With Governance for the
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with PFRSs, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
frorm material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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in preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the geing concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial
repording process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statemenis

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
ig a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with PSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or emor and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of thasa financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

s |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial stalements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive fo
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectivenass of the Company's internal control.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concem. If we conclude that a matenal
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disciosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concerm.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

R. R, Tan & Associabes, CPAS
Uinit 1708, Aniel Glabal Corparate Center, Dofa Jula Vangas Avenue, Ortigas Center, Pasig Gity 1605




Report on the Supplementary Information Required Under Revenue Regulation
(RR) 15-2010 of the Bureau of Internal Revenue

Qur audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial
statements taken as a whole. The supplementary information disclosed in Mote 33 to
the financial statements is presented for purposes of filing with the Bureau of Internal
Revenue and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information
is the responsibility of management and has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in our audit of the basic financial statements. In our opinion, the information is
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as
a whole.

R. R. TAN AND ASSOCIATES, CPAs

By: CHESTER MIMITZ F. SALVADOR
Pariner
CPaA Certificate No, 0129556
Tax Identification Mo. 307-838-154
PTR Mo. 6514508, February 2, 2021, Pasig City
SEC Accreditation Mo. 1812-A, valid until July 23, 2023
BIR Accreditation Mo, 07-000251-003-2019, valid until June 12, 2022
IC Accreditation Mo. 128556-1C, valid until March 1, 2025

July 1, 2021
Pasig City

R. R. Tan & Asscoalns, CPAS
Linit 1708, Antel Global Corporate Cenber, Dofia Julia Wargas Avenws, Qmigas Canber, Pasig City 1605
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Pasig City, Philippenes. 1805
Tal,; (532) B538-3430 1o 32, Fac (633) B638-3430
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PRC-BOA Reg. Mo, 0132, vald wnlil Decamber 31, 2024

SEC Accreditalion Mo.0394-F, vaid until July 23, 2023

BIR Accreditation Mo, 07-100015001-2019, vald until Septembar 12, 2022
IC Accreditation Ma, 0132:4C, valid unkl November 14, 20024

Report of Independent Public Accountants to Accompany Financial Statements for
filing with the Securities and Exchange Commission

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
WESTERN GUARANTY CORPORATION

11" Floor, ETY Building, 484 Quintin Paredes St.
Binondo, Manila

We have audited the financial statements of WESTERN GUARANTY
CORPORATION as at and for the year ended December 31, 2020, on which we
have rendered the attached report dated July 1, 2021.

In compliance with the Revised Securities Regulation Code Rule 68, we are stating

that the said company has a total number of six (6) stockholders owning one hundred
{100) or more shares each.

R.R. TAN AND ASSOCIATES, CPAs

STER NIMITZ F. SALVADOR

Fariner

CPA Certificate Mo. 0129556

Tax ldentification No. 307-838-154

PTR Mo. 6514908, February 2, 2021, Pasig City

SEC Accreditation No. 1812-A, valid until July 23, 2023

BIR Accreditation No. 07-000251-003-2018, valid until June 12, 2022
|G Accreditation No. 129556-1C, valid until March 1, 2025

July 1, 2021
Pasig City




WESTERMN GUARANTY CORPORATION
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
DECEMEBER 31, 2020

21, 2015 and January 1, 2095)

Dacarmder 31, Jaruary 1,
2018 208
Decemibar 31, (Rasfaled - {Resiyad -
ASSETS i 588 Node 37} san Mot 31)
Cash and Cash Equivalonis i} P 114,634 875 P 144 381,207 P 149 504 082
Short-lerm Investmanis g 24,895 363 28933182 24,133 B71
Financial Assels ’ 510
Aurailabla-for-Sake (AFS) 15,522,564 25407 468 35,513,118
Held-to-Maturity (HTM) 300,780,135 228,804,518 226 451 DDE
Loans ard Recahables 400,000 2400000 2,400,000
Insurance Balance Recaivables 11 TEZ. 538,948 722 185871 &21, 714 B88
Reinsurance Assets 12 328,102,907 138,355,355 241,087 160
Dafernad Acquisition Costs 15 109,131,945 93,535,248 72,485 A5
Inveatmanl Proparties i3 228,658,389 223,168,369 173,868 385
Property and Equipment = Nt 14 104,081 BE0 106,417 545 108,961 545
Accred Investmant Income 14 1,834 512 1,295 080 1,382 842
Other Assets 17 25.362,153 15§42 10,218,280
TOTAL ASSETS P E,ﬂ-:t!'.ﬁ.'lilﬁﬁ P 1726916568 P 1|-lﬂ:?|a11.-w$
LIABILITIES AMD EQUITY
Resarse fof Unsarnad Pramiums 18 P a0 452128 P S4B 88038 P 275,705 474
Ingurance Claims Payabla 19 321,200,008 127,241 TAT 186, 570 B51
Arcourls Payabls and Accrued Expensss a0 128,358 464 142,185,511 108,216 B3E
Reinsurance Liabdities a1 2,073,541 35530635 47 S8 TR
Daferned Commission Incame 15 12,063,080 12842 T34 12,822 B2E
[Daofermed Tax Liabilities 0 B, T AEE 10,024 205 10,035 722
Leass Liabilty 32 4,713 861 AT 574 -
Total Liabiities 02T 681,910 T8 AT Th4 Eg-l_l;ltﬂl'ﬂﬁ
EQUITY
Share Capilal 22 400,000,000 A00, 000,000 350,000,000
Contributed Surpdus 350,000 350,000 350,000
Revalustion Resense on
Property and Equipment - net 23,816 Gi4 23476 54 73,416 GB4
AFS5 Finangial Asseis 10 (14,618,603) {14,007, 208) (4,235 645}
Retained Eamings - Dedember 31 691,083,511 G40 314 438 A74 R0 H2E
Taotal Equity 1,100,240, 583 1,050,043 824 843,761,761
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY = ﬂ;iﬂrﬂlﬁﬂ P 17288186568 P 1 467 B11 45668

S Arvmtarwrey Mapin dv P’ Tearava)




WESTERMN GUARANTY CORPORATION
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

With companadive Sgures lor the pear anded Dacembar 31, 2078)

Notes 2020 2019
REVEMUES
Gross Premiums Eamed 24 885,381,010 886,260,148
Remsurance Premium Ceded 24 136 476 684 116,418 837
MHel Insurance Revenue 750,904 322 769,841 211
Commission Income 2 26,322 585 28 559 353
Interest and Other Imesimen] Income - Mef 25 10,505,558 9431 503
Unrealized Fair Value Gain on Invesiment Properties 13 - 48, B00,000
TAT, 732 465 BS54 632 0BT
CLAIMS, LOSSES AND ADJUSTMENT EXPENSES
Insurance Claims, Losses and Adjusiment Expensas Paid- Mel of
Sahmges and Recovenios 26 S35, 378,802 JEB.215 442
Fald Insurance Claims, Losses and Adjusiment Expenses
Rocovered from Feinsurers 28 (19,48 B11) (104,329 550)
Changes in Insurance Claifns Payable 193,058, 262 BG 481 273
Changes in Reinsurers’ Share of Claims, Losses
and Adpisiment Expenses (1567,130,613) (G4, 548 621)
342,557,640 308 1T 544
COSTS AND EXPENSES
Commission Expense 25 186,174 561 144 08T BIG
General and Adminlsirative Expenzes 28 180,727,918 186,343,772
3T6,902 480 332 431 408
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE BE,2ZTZ 345 213 383,115
INCOME TAX EXPEMNSE i ] 17,493 270 47 329 805
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 50,779,076 P 186,053,510
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
Hem o be reclassified 1o profit or los% in subsequen] periods:
Falr value changes in AFS investments 18 {582,317) {9,801, 437)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 50,196,758 P 158 282 .07

T scommtoryray main e Farmo ! b spredy
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WESTERN GUARANTY CORPORATION
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

{With comparaiive Foumes Iy the pear ondod Docember 3T, 2098}

Notes 2020 2018
SHARE CAPITAL 22
Balance, January 1 400,000,000 A50,000,000
Issuance during the year - 50,000,000
Balancs, December 31 400,000,000 400,000 000
CONTRIBUTED SURPLUS 350,000 350,000
REVALUATION RESERVE
Property and equipment - Nel of Tax 23416 BB 23 416,664
Available-for-Sale Financial Assets 1w
Balance, Jamusry 1 (14,037,286) (4,235,845
Changes in Fair Vakms (582,317) {9.801 437)
Batance, December 31 (14,6159,603) {14,037, Z0E)
RETAINED EARNINGS
Balance, January 1 E40,314 AZE 474,260 926
Profit for the Year 50,779,076 166,053,510
Balance, Decemiser 31 591,003 511 B40,314 436
P 4.400,240592 P 1,050,043 834

T somaparwpiny, wairs i finamre’ sl
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WESTERN GUARANTY CORPORATION
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

{With comparative figures for Me pear anded Decambar 31, 2005)

Nohas 2030 2018
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
income Bafome Income Tax Exponse 648,272,045 213383115
Adjustments for
Ameatization of Premium on Hald-to-Maturity Invesimaenis 10 70,146 1445 488
Amprtization of Deferred Acquisition Cost - Nt 158 (16,078,371) (21428357
Provisian for Impairment Loss on Premivm Receiables 1 1,217,419 -
Proviséan Tor Impaimment Loss on Reinsurance Assals 12 1,755 428 .
Dwepreciation Td 9,582,739 10,158 &8
Increase in Reserve for Unearned Premiums 41, 7m, a7 72974 B5T
Unrealized Fair Valua Gain on Investment Propemag 3 = (46, B00,000)
Unrealized Loss an Foregn Exchange £ 131,034 -
Loss (Gainh on Sale of Avallable-for-Sale Invesiments Z5 &) Z58, 350
Irrierast Income 25 (10,465,661 {6,695, 354)
Dividend Income 28 {168, 860) (181,752}
Interest Exprnse a2 240,112 47 248
Operating income Before Working Capital Changes 87,059 057 219,670,625
Decrease (Increase) in Operating Assets:
Insurance Balance Reosivables {41,630, B5E) (300,471, 083)
Reinsurance Assels (183,503, 950) 104, 701 B0
Oiher Asssis [6.512.851) [3,389,114)
Increase (Decrease) in Operating Lisbites:
Accaunts Fayable and Accrued Expenses 11,852,885 13,384,087
Reinsurance Lisbiltes 26,543,006 (12,037, 749)
Insurance Claims Payvabla 193,958,262 (43 339,114)
Cash Provided by (Used in) Operations A7, TEE 643 {20,880, 544)
Income Taxes Paid [4T,272,06T) (25,080,855}
et Cash Provided by (Used in} Operating Activities 40,4092 B16 {40 561, 400)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from SaleMaturities of.
Financial Astels:
Shari-term Insasimants 25 923,182 24133871
Avpdable-for-Sale 26T BOS 1,303,432
Held-la-Malurity 107 568 B34 40818 819
Acquisitions of:
Property and Equipman T4 12,587 B15) B E15.083)
Investmeani Proparty 13 (5,500, 000) (2,500 000)
Financial Asssty
Shoir-lomm nvesimants (24, 595,363) (25,823, 183)
Ayailable-for-Sale 10 (963,947} {1,258 565)
Held-to-Maturity il (178,272,587} (53418 16}
IFlenast and Dividand Feseisad 10,025, 868 8, 184 A&
Mot Cash Used In imaesting Activities { T8.03T) {5, 104 B3
ERET FLOWS FRON FINANGIN G AETIVITIES S ===
Amoniization of Lease Lisbiliy: 32
Principal (584,050) (%08, 381)
Imterest (149,298) (A7 242
Proceeds from Issuance of Capital - 50,000,000
Het Cash Provided by (Used in} Financing Activities (733.277) 49,543,377
MET DECREASE INM CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS {29,615.498) {3,212 873)
EFFECT OF EXCHAMGE RATE CHANGES OM
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTSE (131.034) -
CASH AND CAESH EQUIVALENTS, JANUARY 1 144 381,207 140,554 042
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, DECEMBER 31 114,634,675 P 144,381,207
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WESTERN GUARANTY CORPORATION
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMEER 31, 2020 AND 2019

1.

Corporate Information

WESTERN GUARANTY CORPORATION (Company) was incorporated in the Philippines and
registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on August 31, 1864 with SEC Reg.
Mo, 25658, The Company insure houses, tenements, merchandise and all other property and effects,
real or personal against loss or damage by fire, storm, earthquake shock, fire resulting from
earthquake accident or otherwise, and to carry on the ordinary business of fire insurance in all of the
aforesaid branches.

The Company’s registered office address which is also its principal office is at the 11% Floor, ETY
Building, 484 Quintin Paredes 51, Binondo, Manila

The financial staternents of the Company as of and for the year ended December 31, 2020 {including
the comparative figures as of and for the year ended December 31, 2015) were authorized for issue
by the Board of Directors on July 1, 2021,

Basis of Preparation and Presentation

Slatement of Comphiance
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in compliance with Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards (PFRS) Issued by the Philippine Financial Reporting Standards Couneil

Basis of Financial Statement Preparation and Presentation
The accompanying financial statemeants have baen prepared on a historical cost basis except for the
following which are measured at fair values:

» Available-for-Sale Financial Assets
+ Investment Properties
« Buildings included under Proparty and Equipment

The financial statermants are presented in Philippine Peso and all values represent absolule amounts
except as otherwise indicated

The Company presents its statements of financial position broadly following the order of its liguidity.
An analysis regarding recovery or settlement of assets and Rabilities within twelve months after the
end of the reporting period (curment) is presanted in Note 32.

The Company presents a third statement of financial position as at the beginning of the preceding
period as a result of retrospective restatement and reclassification of items that has a material effect
on the information in the statement of financial position.
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WESTERN GUARANTY CORPORATION
Nofes fo Financiad Slatements
Dacembar 31, 2020 and 2018

Page 2

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial staterents are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

Cash and cash equivalents are dafined as cash on hand, demand deposits and shost-term, highly
liguid investments readily convertible to known amounts of cash with onginal maturities of three
manths or less that are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Shorl-farm lnvestmants

Shon-term investments are short-term, highly Bquid debt instruments that are readily convertible to
kniown amounts of cash with original maturities of more than three months up to one year from dates
of placement. These eam interests at the respective short-term investment rates,

Einancial Instruments

Date of Recognition
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized in the staternents of financial position of the
Company when it becomes a parly to the contraciual provisions of the instrument.

Initial Recogmition

All financial assels and financial labilities are infally recognized at fair value. Except for financial
assets and financial kabllites at FVPL “Fair Value through Profit & Loss®, the initial measurament of
these financial instruments includes transacton costs,

Defermination of Fair Value

The fair value for instruments traded in active market af the reporting date is based an their quoted
market prica, For all other financial instruments not sted in an active market, the fair value is
determined by using appropriate technigues or comparison to similar instruments for which market
observable prices exists,

Where the transaction price in 8 non-active market is different from the fair value of other observable
curment market transactions of the same instruments or from the resulis based on a valuation
technigue, the Company recognizes the difference between the transaction price and the fair value
in the staternent of comprehensive income, unless it qualifies for recognition as some other type of
assel

Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and are reported at its net values in the statement
of financial position only if there is a currently enforceable lagal right to offset the recognized amounts
and there is an intention to seftle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and seftle the liability
simultaneously, This is not generally the case with master natting agreemants, and the related assets
and liabilities are presented gross in the staterments of financial position

Clagsificalion of Financial Instruments

The Company classifies financial assets into the following categories, (i) At FVPL, (ii) Available-for-
Sale, (i) Held-to-Maturity and (iv) Loans and Receivables. The Company classifies its financial
liabilities into financial liabilities at FVPL and other financial liabilities. The classification depends on
the purpose for which the investments were acquired or the Babilities were incurred and whether they
are quoted in an active market. Management determines the classification of its investments at initial
recognition, and where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates such designation at every reporting
date.
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Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities at FVPL

Financial Assels and Financial Liabilikes at FVWPL include financial assets and financial
liabilities held for trading and financial assets and financial liabiies designated upon initial
recognition at FWPL. After initial recognition, Financial Assets and Financial Liabilies at FWPL
are carried at fair value,

A financial asset and financial lability is classified as held for trading if:

*» It has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near fulure; or
# I is part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments that the Company manages
together and has recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

# MW is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may be designated as FVPL upon
initial recognition if:

# Such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistently that would otherwise arise; or

# The financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets that is managed and its
perfarmance is evaluated on a fair value basis; or

# It forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives.

As of December 31, 2020, and 2018, thera are no financial assats under this category.

Available-for-Sale (AFS)

AFS are non-derivative financial assets that are either designated on this category or not
classified in any of the other categories. Subsequent to initial recognition, AFS assels are
carried at fair value in the statement of financial position. Changes in the fair value are
recognized directly in the equity account as "Revalualtion Reserve on AFS Financial Assals”
Where the investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or
loss previously recognized in the equity is included in the profit or loss for the period.

Az atl December 31, 2020 and 2015, financial assets under this category amounted o
P25, 522 564 and P25407 468, respectively.

Loans and Receivables

Loans and Receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. They arise when the Company provides
maney, goods or services direcily to a deblor with no intention of frading the receivables. After
initial measurement, Loans and Receivables are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for impairment. Amortized cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees that are
integral paris of the effective interest rate

Included under this category are the company's Cash and Cash Equivalents, Short-term Bank
Placements, Other Loans and Receivables, Insurance Balance Receivable, Reinsurance
Assets, Other Receivable, and deposits and security funds lodged under Other Assets.

Held-to-Maturity (HTM)
HTM invesiments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and
fixed maturities wherein the Company has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.
After initial measurement, HTM assets are camied at amortized cost using the effective interast
method, less impairment in value. Amorized cost is calculaled by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees that are integral paris of the effective interast
rate. Any changes to the carrying amount of the investment are recognized in statements of
income.
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Az at December 31, 2020 and 2015, financial assets under this category amounied o
P300, 789,135 and P220.804 518, respectively, comprising of government securities and
corporate bonds.

= Oher Financial Liabilities

Issued financial instruments or their components, which are not designated as FVPL are
classified as other financial liabilities where the substance of the confractual arrangement
results in the Company having an obligation either to deliver cash or another financial asset
to the holder, or to satisfy the obligation other than by the exchange of a fived amount of cash
or ancther financial asset for a fixed number of own equity shares. The componants of issued
financial instruments that contain both Fability and equity elements are accounied for
separately, with the equity component being assigned the residual amount after deducting
from the instrument as a whole the amount separately determined as the fair value of the
Eability component on the date of issue.

After initial measurement, other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on the issue and fees that are integral parts of the effective interest
rate. Any effects of restaternent of foreign currency-denominated liabilities are recognized in
the statement of comprehensive income.

Included under this category are Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses, Insurance Claims
Payable and Reinsurance Liabilities.

Reclassification of Financial Assots
A financial asset is reclassified out of the FVPL category when the following conditions are met:

(i}  the financial asset is no longer held for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the
near future; and
(i} thereis a rare situation

A financig! asset that is reclassified out of the FVPL category is reclassified at its fair value on the
date of reclassification. Any gain or loss already recognized in the statemant of income s not
reversed. The fair value of the financial asset on the date of reclassification becomes its new cost or
amartized cost, as applicable.

Impairment of Financial Assels
The Company assesses at each end of the reporting period whether there is any objective evidence
that a financial asset or group of financial assels is impaired.

fij Assels Camed al Amoniized Cost
If there is objective evidence that an impainment loss on Loans and Receivables or Held-to-
Maturity investments carried at amortized cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’'s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial assel's original effective interest rate.
The amount of the loss is recognized in the profit and loss accounts.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the
previously recognized impairment loss is reversed.

Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in the profit and loss accounts,
lo the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed its amoriized cosl at the
reversal date.

(i) Awvailable-for-Zale Financial Assefs
Available-for-Sale financial assets are subject to impairment review at each end of the
reporting pericd. Impairment loss is recognized when there is objective evidence such as
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significant financial difficulty of the issuarfobligor, significant or prolonged decline in market
prices and adverse economic indicators that the recoverable amount of an asset is below its
carrying amount.

Darecogniion of Financial insiruments

Financial Assels
A financial agset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of financial assets)
is derecognized where;

» the rights to recene cash flows from the asset have expired,

= the Company retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an
obligation o pay them in full without material delay o a third party.

» the Company has fransferred its nghts 1o receve cash flows from the asset and either (a)
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the rsks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred the controd of the asset.

Where the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into
a pass-through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor fransferred control of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the
Company’s continuing involvement in the assel. Continuing involverment that takes the form of a
guarantee over the fransferred asset is measured at the lower of ariginal carrying amount of the asset

and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Financial Liabilities

A fimancial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
ar has expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same kender on
substantially different terms, or the tlerms of an existing liability are substantially medified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of
a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in profit or loss

Inswrance Contract

Insurance contracts are defined as those contracts under which the Company (the “insurer’) actepts
significant insurance risk from another party (the “policyholder”) by agreeing to compensate the
policyholder if a specified uncerain future event (the “nsured event’) adversely affects the
palicyholder. As a general guideline, the Company defines insurance risk as significant if the insured
event could cause an insurer to pay significant additional benefits even if the insured event is
extrermely unlikety to happen.

Insurance contracts can also transfer financial rigk. Financial risk is the risk of a possible fulure
change in one or more of 8 specified interest rate, security price, commodity price, foreign exchange
rate, index of price or rates, a credit rating or credit index or ather variabbe.

Investment contracts mainky transfer financkal risk but can also transfer insignificant insurance risk.
Cnce a contract has been classified as an insurance confract, it remains an insurance confract for
the remainder of its lifetime even if the insurance risk reduces significantly during this period, unless
all ights and obligations are extinguished or expire, Investment contracts can however be reclassified
as insurance contracts after inception, if the insurance risk becomes significant.

Insurance Balance Recaivables
These include amaunis due from insurance contracis and due from ceding companiss,

insurance Balance Receivables are recognized on policy inception dates and measured on initial
recognition at the fair value of the consideration recefved for the period or coverage. Subsaqueant 1o
initial recognition, Insurance Balance Receivables are measured at amortized cost.
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The carrying value of insurance receivables s reviewed for impairment whenever avents or
circumstances indicale that the carmying amount may not be recoverable, with the impairment loss
recorded in the statarment of income.

Insurance receivables are derecognized under the derecognition criteria of financial assets.

Reinsurance

The Company cedes (Treaty and Facultative) insurance rigk in the normal course of business.
Reinsurance essels represent balances due from reinsurance companies. Recoverable amounts are
estimated in @ manner consistent with the outstanding claims provision and in accordance with the
reinsuranca contract.

An impairment review is parformed at each reporting date or more frequently when an indication of
impairment arises during the reporting year. Impairment occurs when objective evidence exists that
the Company may not recover cutstanding amounts under the terms of the contract and when the
impact on the amounts that the Company will receive from the reinsurance can be measured reliably.
The impairment loss is charged to profit or loss.

Ceded reinsurance arrangemenis do not relieve the Company from its obligation to policy holders,

The Company also assumes (Facultalive) reinsurance risk in the normal course of business for
insurance contracts. Premiums and claims on assumed reinsurance are recognized as income and
expenses in the same manner as they would be if the reinsurance were considered direct business,
taking into account the product classification of the reinsured business. Amounts payable are
estimated in @ manner consistent with the associated reinsurance contract.

Fremiums and claims are presentad on a gross basgis for both ceded and assumed reinsurance.

Reinsurance assets or liabilities are derecognized when the confractual rights are extinguished or
expired or when the contract is transferred o another party.
when the confract is transferred to another party.

Deferred Acquisition Cosls

Commissions and other acquisition costs that vary with and are primarily related to the acguisition of
new and renewal insurance contracts are deferred and charged to expense in proportion to the
pramium revenue recognized. Subsequent to initial recognition, thesa costs are amortized using the
24th method over the life of the contract Amoriization is charged against the statement of income.
The unamortized acquisition costs are shown in the assets section of the statement of financial
position as "Deferred Acquisition Costs”, All Other costs are recognized as incurred

Investment Properies
Investment Properties consist of properties held for long term rental yields andior for capital
appreciation, Investmeni Properties are initially measured at cost, including transaction costs.

Afier initial recognition, Investment Properties is camried at fair value, Fair value is based on active
market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the nature, location or condiion of the
specific assel. If this information is nol available, the Company uses alternative valualion methods
such as recent prices on less active markets or discounted cash flow projections. The Company
reviews these valuations annually.

Investment Properiies that are being redeveloped for continuing use as Invesiment Properties or for
which the market has become less aclive continues to be measured at fair value, Investment
Properies are derecognized when either it has been disposed of, or when the investment property s
parmanantly withdrawn or sold and no future economic banafit is expectad from its disposal Any
gains or losses on the refirement or disposal of an investment property are recognized in profit or loss
in the year of retirement or disposal.
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FProperfy amd Equipment

The initial cost of Property and Equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset o its working condition and location for its intended use. Expenditures
incurred after the property and egquipment have been put inlo operations, such as repairs and
maintenance and overhaul costs, are normally charged to operations in the period the costs are
incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditures have resulted in
an increase in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an item of
Proparty and Equipment beyond its originally assessed standard of performance, the expenditures
are capitalized as additional costs of Propery and Eguipment. Subseguent to initial recognition,
property and equipment, except buildings, are caried at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, if any,

Buildings are subsequently carried af fair value,

When assets ere sold, or relired, their costs and accumulated depreciation, amortization and
impairment losses, if any, are aliminated from the accounts and any gain of loss resulting from their
disposal is incleded in the Statement of Comprehensive Income of such period

Depreciation and amortization are computed on the straight-ine method based on the estimated
useful lves of the assets as follows:

Items of Property and Eguipment Estimated Usaful Life
Buildings 25 years
Office Equipment 10 years
Furnitune and Fixiures 10 years
Transportation Egudpmment 10 years
Data Processing Equipment 5 years
Leasehold improwement 5 years
Right-of-use Assels lease temm

The useful life of each of the property and equipment is estimated based on the period over which
the asset is expected to be available for usa, Such estimation is based on a collective assessment of
industry practice and experience with similar assets. The assets' residual valves, useful lives and
depreciation and amortization method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each financial
year-end.

An item of Property and Equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no fufure economic
banafils are axpectad to anse from the continued use of the asset Any gain or bS5 ansing on
derecognition of the assel (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the tem} is included in the statemeant of comprehensive income in the year the
item is derecognized,

Software
Internally developed software which is not specifically identifiable and integral part to a specific

hardware is an intangible asset. These are camied at cost, less accumulated amartization and any
impairmant in value. Amortization is computed on straight-ling method over their estimated wseful
life of 10 years,

ih T fax
Creditable withholding taxes represent amounis withheld by Company’s counterparties in relation to
premiums eamed. Subsequently, these amounts are applied against the Company's income tax
liabilities.
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The Company assesses at each end of the reporting period whether there is any objective evidence
that a financial assel or group of financial assets is impaired.

(i} Assefs carmed at amortized cost
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables or held-to-
maturity investiments carried at amortized cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset's camying amount and the present value of
estimated fulure cash flows discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate
The amount of the loss is recegnized in the profit and loss accounts.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively 1o an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the
previously recognized impairment loss is reversed,

Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in the profit and loss accounts,
to the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed its amortized cost at the
reversal date.

(i} Awailable-for-sale financial assels
Available-for-sale financial assets are subject to impairment review at each end of the
reportng period. Impairment loss is recognized when there is objective evidence such as
significant financial difficulty of the issuerfobligor, significant or prolonged decline in market
pricas and adverse economic indicators that the recoverable amount of an assat s balow its
carrying amount.

Insurance Claims Payabls

Liabilities for claims is calculated as the sum of Qutstanding claims reserve, Claims handling expense,
and Incurred but not reported claims (IBNR), with Margin for Adverse Deviation (MGAD), Af end of
each reporting penod, liability adequacy tests are performed, to ensure the adequacy of liabilites for
claims, In performing the test for premivm liabilities, the Unearmed Risk Reserve (URR) s compared
to the Unearned Premium Reserve (UPR). If the URR is greater than the UPR, the excess is set up
as an additional premium Rability on top of the UPR

In cabculating IBNR, the following primary reserving methodologies were applied in the valuation
process

# Chain ladder or Loss Development Triangles Method
= Bornhuetter-Ferguson method
« Expected Loss Ratio Method

The Actuary determines the appropriateness of the methodology considering the charactesistics of
the data available. The Actuary also assesses the reliability of the expected loss ratios by obtaining
estimates from various socurces, such as underwriters, the business plan, market statistics, or from a
historic view of profitability and loss ratios. in valuing the claims liabilities, the Actuary alsa considers
other factors such as, but not limited to, varying expense structure in run-off situations, large losses
arising from significant past evenis. operational changes in claims management, underwriting
changes such as business mix and premium rate changes, changes in reinsurance program, changes
in claims handling procass, and external conditions.

To ensure sufficiency of reserves, the Actuary conducts a back-testing exercise by comparing actual
and expected experience based on previous valuations. Claim Rabllites also include MIAD to allow
for inherent uncertainty of the best estimate.
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Pramium Resanes

Premium reserves refer to all fulure claim paymenis anising from future events after the valuation date
that are insured under unexpired policies, as well as expenses for policy management and claims
settlerment, and is computed as the higher of the UPR and URR at a designated level of confidence,
on both gross and net of reinsurance basis.

UPR s the reserve for that portion of the premium received which is atiributable to a perod of risk
falling beyond the valuation date, and is recognized as revenue over the period of the policy using
the 24th method. URR is an estimate of the otal ability (including expenses), at a designated level
of confidence, in respect of the risk after the valuation date of policies written prior o that date
including expenses for policy management and claims setflement costs. In estimating URR, the
Company adopted the loss ratio approach by multiplying the UPR with loss ratios adjusted by taking
into account all potential future payments including but not limited to future claims payments,
retrocession costs, unallocated loss adjustment expense and ongoing policy adménistration costs
arising from the unearned portion of premium collected. A computation is performed to determine
whather the URR required is greater or less than the UPR. If the URR is greater, then the differance
should be booked as an additional reserve on top of the UPR.

Accounlts Payable and Accrued Expenses

Accounts and other payvables are liabilities o pay for goods or services that have been received or
suppled and have been invoiced or formally agreed with the supplier, Accounis Payable are non-
interest bearing and are stated at their nominal value.

Accounts payable are measured initially at their nominal values and subsequently recognized at
amortized cosis less sefflement payments.

Accruals are liabilities o pay for goods or services that have been received or supplied but have not
been paid, invoiced or formally agreed with the supplier, including amounts due to employeas,

Leases

Al inception of a confract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract ks, or contains a lease, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
assel for a period of lime in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the
right to confrol the use of an identified assel, the Company uses the definition of a lease in PFRS 18,
This policy is applied o contracts enlered into, on or after January 1, 2019,

Az g Lessoe

Al commencement or on modification of a contract that contains a lease component, the Company
allocates the consideration in the coniract to each lease compaonent on the basis of its relative stand-
alone prices. However, for the leases of property, the Company has elected not 1o separate non-
lease components and account for the lease and non-lease components as a single lease
component.

The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencament date.
The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before thie commancament dale, plus any initial
direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs fo dismantle and remove the underlying asset or 1o
restore the underlying asset of the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received,

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straightine method from the
commencement date to the end of the lease term unless the lease transfers cwnership of the
underlying asset o the Company by the end of the lease term or the cost of the right-of-use asset
reflects that the Company will exercise a purchagse option, In that case, the right-of-use asset will be
depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset which is determined on the same basis as
those of property and equipment, In addition, the right-of-use assel is periodically reduced by
impairment lossas, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the laase liability.
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The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or if that rate cannot
be readily determined, the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Company uses its
incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.
* Fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments:
= Variable lease payment that depends on an index or 3 rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at the commencement date:
* Amounts expected to be payable under a residual fguaramtes; and
= The exercise price under a purchase option that the Company is reasgnably certain to
exercise, lease payments in an optional renewal period if the Company is reasonably certain
to exercise an extension option, and penalties for early termination of a lease unless the
Company is reasonably certain not to terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest methad. It is remeasured
when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there ks
a change in the Company's estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value
guarantee, if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension
or termination option or if there is a revised in-substance fixed lease payment.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the righit=of-
use asset has been reduced to zera.

Short-lerm Leases and Leases of Low-value Assets

The Company has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for the leases of
low-value assets and shori-term leases. The Company recognizes the lease payments associated
with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

=] Equity
= | Share Capital

Share Capital is determined using the nominal value of shares that have been subscribed (or issued
— and paid-up).

= | Contributed Surplus
Contributed surplus represent additional contribution of stockholders to the Company in compliance
— with the requirement of the Insurance Commission,
— Refained Eamings
Retained eamings include all currant and prior pericd results as disclosed in the statement of
= comprehensive income, net of dividends declared.
- Revaluation Reserve on AFS Financial Assels
This represents gains or losses arising from fair value changes of Available-for-Sale financial assets
=] Revaluation Reserve — Properly and Equipment
- This represents the appraisal increment on real estate, which are presented at appraised values in
the financial statements net of deferred income tax.
Revanwe Recognition
Rewvenue is recognized only when the Company satisfies a performance obligation by transferring

contrel of the promised services to the customer. The following specific revenue recognition criteria
must also be met before revenue is recognized.,
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Premiums

Premiums from short duration insurance contracts are recognized as revenue over the period of the
contracts using the 24™ method. The portion of the premiums written that reiate o the unexpired
periods of the policies at end of the reporting periods are accounted for as “Resene for Uneamed
Premiums”and prasanted in the liability section of the statement of financial position. The reinsurance
premiums ceded that pertains to the unexpired period as at reporting dates are accounted for as
*Reserve for Reinsvrance Premiums™ and lodge under “Reinsurance Asseds” account in the
staterments of financial position. The net changes in these accounts between reporting dates are
credited or charged against income far the year.

Reinsurance Commission

Reinsurance Commissions are recognized as revenue over the period of the contracts. The portion
of commissions that relates to the unexpired pericds of the policies at the reporting dale is accounted
for as “ Deferred Commission Income” in the liabilities section of the statement of financial position.

intarest income

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost and interest-beanng financial instruments,
interest income is recorded al the effective interest rate, which is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset. The calculation takes into
account all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment options), includes
any fees or incremental costs that are directly aftributable to the instrument and are an integral part
of the effective interest rate, but not future credit losses. The adjusted carrying amount is calculated
based on the original effective interest rate. The change in carmying amount is recorded as interest
income.

Once the recorded value of a financial asset or group of similar financial assets has been reduced
due to an impairment loss, interest income continues to be recognized using the onginal effective
interest rate applied to the new carrying amount.

Dividend Income

Dawvidend Income is recognized when the right to receive dividends is established,

Realized Gains and Losses

Realized Gains and Losses on the sale of AFS financial asseis are calculated as the difference

between net sales proceeds and the original cost net of accumulated impairment losses. Realized
gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the sale transaction occurred.

Cost gnd Expense Recognition

Claims

This account consists of claims paid to policyholdders, which includes changes in the valuation of
insurance confract liabilities, including IBMR. The IBMR shall be calcutated based on standard
actuanial projection techniques or combination of such techniques, such as but not limited 1o the chain
ladder method, the expected loss ratio approach, the Bornhuetier - Ferguson method. At each
reporting date, prior year claims estimates are reassessed for adequacy and changes made are
charged to provision,

Share in recoveries of claim are evaluated in terms of the estimated realizable values of the salvage
or recoveries. Recovenes on settled claims are recognized in profit or loss in the period the recoveries
are determined. Recoveries on the unsettied claims are recorded as reinsurance recoverable on
losses shown as part of reinsurance assels.

Some insurance contracts permat the Company to sell {(usually damaged) property acquired in settling
a claim. The Company may also have the right to pursue third parties for payment of some or all
costs.
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Commission Expense
Commissions paid to cedants are deferred and are included in deferred acquisition cost, subject to
the same amortization method.

Expanse Recognition

Expenses are recognized when thare is a decrease in fulure economic benefit related io a decrease
in an asset or an increase in a liability that can be measured reliably. Operating expenses and interest
expense, except for lease agreaments, are recognized in the statement of income as they are
incurmed.,

Retirement Benefit Cost

The net Defined Benefit Liability or asset is the aggregate of the present value of the Defined Benefit
Liability at the end of the reporting period reduced by the fair value of plan assets (if any), adjusted
for any effect of limiting a net defined benefit asset to the asset ceiling. The asset ceiling is the

present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in
future contributions: (o the plan.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plans is actuarially determined using the
projected unit credit method.

Defined benefit cost comprises the fallowing:
{a) Serice cost
(b} Metinterest on the net Defined Benefit Liabiity or assel: and
(e} Re-measuraments of net Defined Benefit Liability or asset

Sarvice cost which includes current service cost, past service cost and gains or losses on non-routine
seftlements is recognized as expense in profit or loss. Past service cost is recognized when plan
amendment or curtailment occurs.

Met interest on the net Defined Benefit Liability or asset is the change during the period in the net
Defined Benefit Liability or asset that arises from the passage of time which is determined by applying
the discount rate: based on high quality corporate bonds to the net Defined Benefit Liability or asset.
Met interest on the net Defined Benefit Liability or asset is recognized as expense or income in profit
or koss.

Remeasurements comprising actuarial gains and losses, return on plan assets and any change in
the effect of the asset ceiling (excluding net intarest on Defined Benefit Liability) are recognized
immediately in other comprehensive income in the period in which they arse. Remeasurements are
not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Plan assets are assels that are held by a long-term employesa benefit fund or qualifying insurance
policies. Plan assets are not available to the creditors of the Company, nor can they be paid directly
to the Company. Fair value of plan assets is based on market price information. When no market
price is available, the fair value of plan assets is estimated by discounting expected future cash flows
using a discount rate that reflects both the risk associated with the plan assets and the maturity or
expected disposal date of these assets (or, if they have no maturity, the expacted period until the
settierment of the related obligations). If the fair value of the plan assets is higher than the presant
value of the Defined Benefit Liability, the measurement of the resulting defined banefit asset is limited
to the present value of economic benefits available in tha form of refunds from the plan or reductions
in future contributions to the plan,

The Company's right to be reimbursed of some or all of the expenditure required to settle a Defined
Benefit Liability is recognized as a separate asset at fair value when and only when reimbursement
is virtually certain.



AR BB AR ERRRERERERERREEEERERRNEERERERER'

WESTERN GUARANTY CORPORATION
Nafes Jo Financial Siafements
Dacarmbar 37 2020 and 2073

Page 13

--------------------------------------

income Taxes
Tax expense recognized in profit or loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax not

recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, if any,

Currant tax assels or liabilities comprise those claims from, or obligations to, fiiscal authorties relating
to the current or prior reporting perod, thal are uncollected or unpaid at the end of the reporting
pericod. They are calculated using the tax rates and tax laws applicable ko the fiscal penods to which
they relate, based on the taxable profit for the year. All changes io current tax assets or liabilities are
recognized as a component of tax expense in profit or loss.

Deferrad tax is accounted for using the liability method, on temporary differences at the end of each
reporting period between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes. Under the liability method, with certain exceptions, defermed tax l@bilities are
recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized for all
deductible temporary differences and the carry-forward of unused tax losses and unused tax credits
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assels are reassessed at the end
of each reporting period and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future
taxable profit will be available to allow such deferred tax assets to be recovered,

Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period when the assel is realized or the labilty is seftled praovided such tax rates have bean anacied
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.

The carrying amount of Deferred Tax Assets i reviewed at the end of each reporling period and
reduced to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.

The measureament of Deferred Tax Liabilties and Assets reflect the tax consequences that woukd
follow from the mamner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting penod, (o recover
or setfle the carmying amount of its assets and liabities. For purposes of measuring deferred tax
liabilities and deferred tax assets for Investment Properties that are measured using the fair value
maodel, the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed (o be recovered entirely through sale,
unless the presumption is rebutted, that is, when the investment property is depreciable and is held
within the business model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
ambodied in the invesiment properiy aver time, rather than through sale.

Most changes in Deferred Tax Assets or Liabilities are recognized as a component of tax expanse in
profit or loss, except to the extent that it relatles to items recognized in other comprehensive incoms
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognized in other comprehensive incoma or directly
in equity, respéctively,

Deferred Tax Assets and Deferred Tax Liabilities are offset if the Company has a legally enforceabis
right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxeas relate to the same
entity and the same taxation authority.

Faoreign Curmancy Transachions and Transialions

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the curmency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the functional currency). The financial
statements are presented in Philippine Peso, the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency at exchange rates prevailing
at the time of transaction. Foreign currency gains and losses resulting from setilernent of such
transaction and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and labilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in profit or loss.
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Related Parly Transactions
Parties are considered to be related if one party has the abiity to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions.

Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject 1o common control or comman significant
influenca.

In considering each possible related party relationship, attention s directed to the substance of the
retationship and not merely on the legal form.

Brovish
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation, either legal or constructive,
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required fo seltle the obligation, and the amount of the obligation can be estimated reliably.

The amount of the provision recognized is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle
the present cbligation at the date of the Statement of Financial Position, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to sette the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows.
Provisions are reviewed at each reparting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Conl i

Contingent liabilities and assets are not recognized because their existence will be confirmed only by the
OCOUITEnce oF Ron-otourrence of ane or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
entity. Contingent liabilities, if any, are disclosed, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits is remote, Contingent assets are disckosad only when an inflow of economic
benefits is probable.

E he R ] }
Any event after the financial reporting date that provides additional Infarmation about the Company’s
position at the financial reporting date (adjusting event) are reflected in the financial statements. Any
event after the financial reporting date that is not an adjusting event is disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements when malerial

4. Changes in Accounting Standards and Disclosures

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are consistent with
those of the previous financial years, except for the PFRS, amended PFRS and improvements to
PFRS which were adopted as of January 1, 2020. Unless otherwise stated, the new standards and
amendments did not have any material impact to the Company.

Amendments lo PFRS 3, Business Combinations — Definition of a Business

The amendments to PFRS 3 clarify that to be considered a business, an integrated set of activities
and assets must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive process that together significantly
contribute to the ability to create output Furthermaore, it clarifies that a business can exist without
including all of the inputs and processes needed to create outputs.

Amendments to PFRS 7, Financial Instrumenis: Disclosures, PFRS 9, Financial Instruments, and
PAS 38, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measuremen! — Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
The amendments to PFRS % and PAS 39 provide a number of reliefs, which apply to all hedging
relationships that are directly affected by interest rate benchmark reform. A hedging relationship is
affected if the reform gives rse to uncertainties about the timing and or amount of benchmark-based
cash flows of the hedged item or the hedging instrument. The Company does not have any interest
rate hedge relationships.
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Amendments to PFRE 16, Leases - Covid-15-Related Rent Concessions

The amendments provide relief to lessees from applying the PFRS 16 reguirement on lease
modifications to rent concessions arsing as a direct conseguence of the COVID-18 pandemic. A
lessae may alect not to assess whether a rent concession from a lessor is a lease modification if it
meets all of the following criteria:

+ the rent concession is a direct consequence of COVID-19;

» the change in lease payments results in a revised lease consideration that is substantially
the same as, or less than, the lease consideration immediately preceding the change:

* any reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally due on or before June 30,
2021; and

« thers i no substantive change to the other terms and canditions of the leass,

A lesses that applies this practical expedient will account for any change in lease payments resulting
from the COVID-19 related rent concession in the same way it would account for a changa that is not
a leasa modification, i.e., as a variable lease paymeant

The amendment, issued on May 28, 2020, is effective June 1, 2020 but. to ensure the relief is
available when needed most, lessees can apply the amendment immediately in any of the financial
statements = interim of annual — not yet authorized for isswe. The Company adopted the amendment
on its effective date.

The Company will continue to monitor future rent concessions that will fall within the scope of this
amendment and assess its impact on the Company's financial position and operations, when
applicable,

Amendments o PAS 1, Presenlalion of Financlal Stalemenis, and PAS B, Accounling Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors — Definition of Matenial

The amendments provide a new definition of material that states “information is material if ormitting,
misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expectad to influence decisions that the primary users
of general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements, which
provide financial information about a specific reporting entity.”

The amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude of information, either
individually or in combination with other information, in the context of the financial statements. A
misstatement of information is matenal if it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions made
by the primary users.

Effeclive subsequent to December 31, 2020

Pronouncements issued but not yet effective are listed below. The Company intends to adopt the
following pronouncements when they become effective. Unless otherwise indicated, the Company
does not expect that the future adoption of these pronouncements will have a significant impact on
its financial statements.

Effeclive beginming on or after January 1, 2021

Amendmenis to PFRS 4, PFRS 7, PFRS 9, and PFRS 16 - Interest Rate Benchmark Reform = Phase
2

The amendments provide the following temporary reliefs which address the financial reporting effects
when an interbank offered rale (IBOR) is replaced with an altemnative nearly risk-free interest rate
(RFR):

« praciical expedient for changes in the basis for determining the contractual cash flows as a
result of IBOR reform;

= relief from discontinuing hedging relationships; and
« relief from the separately identifiable requirement when an RFR instrument is designated as
a hedge of a risk componant
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The Company shall also disclose information about:

« the nature and extent of risks lo which the entity is exposed arising from financial instrumenis
subject to IBOR reform, and how the entity manages those nisks, and

s their progress in completing the transition to alternative benchmark rates, and how the entity
is managing that transition.

Effective beginning on or affer January 1, 2022

Ameandments to PFRE 3, Reference fo the Conceplual Framework

The amendments are intended to replace a reference to the Framework for the Preparation and
Presentation of Financial Staterments, issued in 1989, with reference to the Conceplual Framewark
for Financial Reporting issued in March 2018 without significantly changing its requirements.

The amandments added an exception (o the recognition principle of PFRS 3, Business Combinations,
to avoid the issue of potential 'day 2° gains or losses arising for liabilities and contingent liabilities that
would be within the scope of PAS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, or
Philippine IFRIC 21, Levies, if incurred separately. At the same time, the amendments add a new
paragraph to PFRS 3 to clarify that contingent assets do not qualify for recognition at the acquisition
date.

Amendments fo PAS 18, Praperty, Plant and Equipmeéni — Proceeds before Intended Use

The amendments prohibit entities from deducting from the cost of an item of properly, plant and

equipment, any proceeds from selling items produced while brnging that asset to the location and

condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Instead,

::::ntit'_nl recegnizes the proceeds from selling such items, and the costs of producing those items, in
I o loss.

The amendment must be applied retrospectively 1o items of property, plant and equipment made
available for use on or afier the beginning of the earliest period presented when the Company first
applies the amendment.

Amendments io PAS 37, Onerous Contracls - Costs of Fulliling & Contract

The amendments specify which cosis an enfity needs to include when assessing whether a contract
i5 onercus o loss-making. The amendments apply a “directly related cost approach”. The cosis that
relate direclly to a contract to provide goods or services include both incremental costs and an
allocation of costs directly related to contract activities. General and administrative costs do not relate
directly to 8 contract and are excluded, unless they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under
the confract The amendments must be applied to contracts for which the Company has not yet
fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the annual reporting period in which i first applies the
amendments,

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle

+ Amendment to PFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards -
Subsidiary as a First-Tima Adopler

The amendment permits a subsidiary thal elects to apply paragraph D18{a) of PFRS 1 o
maasure curmulative translation differences using the amounts reported by the parent, based
on the parent’s date of transition fo PFRS. This amendment is also applied to an associate
or joint venture that elects 1o apply paragraph D16(a) of PFRS 1.

Amendments o PFRS 9, Fees in the "10 per centl’ Test for Derecognition of Financial
Liabilities

The amendment clarifies the fees that an entity includes when assessing whether the ferms
of a new or modified financial Bability are substantially different from the terms of the original
financial lability. These fees include only those paid or received between the borrower and
the lender, including feas paid or received by either the borrower or lender on the ather's
behalf. An entity applies the amendment to financial liabilities that are medified or exchanged

HUBURURBUL
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on or after the baginning of the annual reporting period in which tha entity first applies the
amandment. The Company will apply the amendments to financial Babilities that are modified
or exchanged on or after the beginning of the annual reparting period in which tha antity first
applies the amendment

=  Amendments to PAS 41, Agriculiure — Taxation in Fair Value Maasuraments
The amendment removes the requirement in paragraph 22 of PAS 41 that entities exclede
cash flows for taxation when measuring the fair value of assets within the scope of PAS 41,

Effective baginning on or after January 1, 2023

Amendments to PAS 1, Presentalion of Financigl Statements — Classification of Liahiities as Curent
or Mon-current

The amendments clarify paragraphs 69 to 76 of PAS 1 to specify the requirements for classifying
liabilities as current or nen-current.
The amendments clarify.

what is meant by a right to defer setihement;
that a right to defer must exist at the end of the reparting period;
that classification is unaffected by the likelihood that an entity will exercise its deferral right:
and

+ that only if an embedded dervative in a convertible liability is itsell an equity instrument
would the terms of a liability not impact its classification,

PFRS 17, Insurance Conlfracts

PFRS 17 is a comprehensive new accounting standard for insurance confracts covering recognition
and measurement, presentation and disclosure. Once effective, PFRS 17 will replace PFRS 4,
Insurance Confracts. This new standard on insurance contracts applies to all types of insurance
contracts {i.e., life, non-lifa, direct insurance and re-insurance), regardless of the type of entities that
issue thermn, as well as to certain guarantees and financial instruments with discretionary participation
features. A few scope exceptions will apply.

The overall objective of PFRS 17 is to provide an accounting model for insurance contracts thal is
more useful and consistent for insurers. In contrast to the requirements in PFRS 4, which are largely
based on grandfathering previous local accounting policies, PFRS 17 provides a comprehensive
madel for insurance contracts, covering all relevant accounting aspects.

The core of PFRS 17 is the general model, supplemented by:

» a specific adaplation for contracts with direct participation features (the variable fee
approach); and
= asimplified approach (the premium allocation approach) mainly for shori-duration contracis

Interpretalion with Defarred Effechive Date

Amendments fo PFRS 10, Financial Sfatements, and PAS 28, Invesimenis in Associates and Jaoinl
Vantures — Sale or Contribution of Assels befween an Investor and ifs Associate or Join! Venture
The amendments address the conflict between PFRS 10 and PAS 28 in dealing with the loss of
control of a subsidiary that is sold or contributed to an associate or joint venture, The amendmants
clarify that a full gain or loss is recognized when a transfer to an associate or joint vanture mvolves a
business as defined in PFRS 3. Any gain or loss resulting from the sale or contribution of assets that
does not constitute a business, however, is recognized only to the axtent of unrelated investors'
interests in the associate or joint venture.

On January 13, 2016, the Financial Reporiing Standards Council postponed the original effective
date of January 1, 2016 of the said amendments until the International Accounting Standards Board
has compieted its broader review of the research project on equity accounting that may result in the
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simplification of accounting for such transactions and of other aspects of accounting for associates
and joint ventures.

5. Summary of Significant Accounting Judgments and Estimates

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements in conformety with Philippine Financial
Reporting Standard requires Management to make estimates and assumplions that affect the
amounts reported in the Company's financial statements and accompanying notes. Judgments and
estimales are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reascnable under the circumstances.
Actual results may aciually differ from such estimates.

Judgments

In the process of applying the Company's accounting policses, Management has made the following
judgment, apart from those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recegnized in the financial statements:

Classification of investments
In classifying its investments, the Company evaluates its intention, marketability of the instrument
and its ability to hold the investments until maturity.

The classifications of investments as at December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

_ znm__ 2018
Anailable-for-sale P 25522564 P 25407 468
Held-to-maturity 300,789,135 228,804,518

Classification and Valuation of Inivestiment Properies and Owner-Occupied Properfies

The Company reclassifies its revenue generating properties o Investment Properties, leaving owner-
occupied properties under Property and Equipment, both carried at their respective Market Values,
and the corresponding recognition of the resulting increase in fair value in the Profit and Loss for
Investment Properties and Revaluation Reserve for owner-occupied properties.

Investment Properties, amounted to P228 BE8, 389 in 2020 and P223,168 388 in 2019.

Owner-occupied properties, net of accumulated depreciation and impairment losses amounted fo
P104,051,880 and P105,.417 545 in 2020 and 2019, respectively.
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Estimates

In the application of the Company's accounting policies, Management is required to make
judgements, estimales and assumgptions about the carrying amounts of assets and labilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources, The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis, Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and fulure periods.

Determination of Fair Value of Financial Assels and Liablities

Management applies valuation technigues to determine the fair value of financial instrumeants whera
active market quotes are nol available. This requires management o develop estimates and
assumptions based on market inputs, using observable data that market participants would use in
pricing the imstrument. VWhere such data is not observable, management uses s best estimate.
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The fair value hierarchy of the Company's financial instruments are summarized in the tables below:
2020
s Leveal 1 Lovel 2 Lovel 3
AFS Investmentis
Listed equity securities P 20,918,084 P - P n
Equity fund - 4,604,500 -
HTM Investments
Government securities 286,051,295 - -
Corporate sscuritias 15,553, 558 - -
Loans and receivables
Mortgage loans - 2,400,000
Cash and cash equivalents - 111,824,675
Short-term investments - 24, 895,363
2015
Lewel 1 Lewvel 2 Level 3
AFS Invesiments
Listed equity securities F 20407468 P = =] =
Equity fund - &,000, 000 -
HTM Imestrmenis
Mortgage lcans - - 2,400,000
Cash and cash equivalents - - 142,224,607
Short-term inestments - . 25,923,182
—
—
— |
—
—
—
- |
- |
- |
—
—
= |
- 1
- |

The company measures fair value of financial assets and liabilities using the following fair value
hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements.

s« Lavel 1

Inputs are quoted in active market for identical assets or liabilities that the antity can access
at the measurement date.

Included in Level 1 category are assets and liabilities that are measured in whale of in part
by reference to published quoles in an active market.

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily
and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, indusiry group, pricing sefvice or
regulatory agency and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market
transactons an an am's length basis.

s Level2
Inputs ather than queted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
lability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly {that is, derived from prices).

* Level3

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is,
uncbservable inputs),
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Fair values were determined as follows:

= Cash and Cash Equivalents, Short-term Investments - the fair values are approximately the
carrying amounis due to shor-term nature,

= Quoted Debt Securities (Government and Corporate) — the fair values were determined from
the published references from Philippine Dealing System or third-party information.

= Listed Equity Securities - the fair values were determined from the published prices from
Philippine Stock Exchange.

« Equity Fund — The fair value was determined via Net Assat Value per sharefunits. These ana
calculated by dividing the fair value of net assets over the total number of sharesiunits
IBsued,

7. Management of Insurance Risk, Financial Risk and Capital

Insurance Risk

The risk under insurance contracts is the possibility of occurrence of insured event and unceriainty
of the amount and timing of resulting claims. The principal risk the Company faces under such
confracts is that the actual claims exceed the canmying amount of the insurance habilities. This could
occur due to any of the following:

a) Occurrence risk — the possibility that the number of insured events will differ from those
expecied.

b) Severity risk — the possibility that the cost of the events will differ from those axpected.

¢) Development risk - the possibility that changes may occur in the amount of an insurers
obligation at the end of the contract pariod.

The variability of risks is improved by diversification of risk of loss to a large porticlio of insurance
contracts, as a more diversified portfolio is less likely to be affected across the beard of change in
any subset of the portfolio. The varability of risk is also improved by careful selection and
implementation of underwriting strategy and guidelines.

The business of the Cempany comprises short-term non-ife insurance contracts. For genersl
insurance contracts, claims are often affected by natural disasters, calamities, etc

The Company manages insurance risk through the fallowing mechanisms:

» The use and maintenance of management information systems that provide up to date and
reliable data on risk @xposure at any point in time.

» Guidelines are izsued for concluding insurance contracts and assuming insurance risks.

= Pro-active claims handling procedures are followed to Investigate and adjust claims thereby
preventing settlement of dubious or fraudulent claims,

* Reinsurance is used to limit the Company's exposure to large claims by placing risk with
reinsurers providing high security.

The business of the Company mainly comprises of short-term non-life insurance contract

The Company principally issued the following types of general insurance contracts: fire, marine.
personal accident, engineering, maotor car, bonds and miscellaneous casualty.
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The cancentraton of insurance claims as at December 31, 2020 and 2019 i5 a3 follows;

2020 2018

Share of Hat Share of Mgt

Gross Reinsurar Liability Gross Rensurer Liability

Fire P 209466568 P 182119404 P 2T MTET P 4BSM0 348 P JT4R5BED P 11454458
Moler car 12,339,559 . 12,330,555 14,143 TE3 . 14,143,763
Persanal accldent BT9,457 38,023 480434 940 512 T4 614 BES 295
Engineering 180,000 . 180,000 30,650 - 3650
Other lines Td4d 482 - 744,482 113,005 - 713,005

P 223,690,006 P 182718424 P 40891642 P BAT71218 P 37760474 P 27,016804
"Amounts ane ned of IBNS amounting bo PI7, 589,343 in 2020 and P52 454,453 in 2M5
ci il Rish
The Company is also exposed o financial risk through its financial assets and financizal liabilities. The
mast important components of these financial risks are credit risk, liquidity risk and markef risk.

The Company's credit risk s primarily attributable to its insurance receivable. The Company has
adopted siringent procedure in extending credit terms to cusiomers and in monstonng its credit nsk.

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and
cause the ather party to incur a financial loss.

The Company manages the level of credit risk it accepts through comprehensive credit risk policy
satting out assessment and determination of what constitules credit risk for the Company, setting up
exposure limits by each counter party or group of counter parties, geographical and industry
segments, guidelings on obtaining collateral and guaraniees, reporting of credit risk exposures and
breaches to the monitoring authority, monitoring complance with credit risk policy and review of credit
risk palicy for perinence and changing environment.

Exposurg
The table below shows the gross maximum exposure to credit risk of the Company as at December
31, 2020 and 2019.

20210 2018
Cash and cash equivalents® P 111,824,675 P 142 234 GOF
Short term imvestments 24,895 3163 25,623 182
Financial Assets:
AFS 25,522 564 25,407 458
HTM™ 300,789,135 224, 804 518
Loans and receivables 2,400,000 2,400,000
Insurance balances receivable TE3.816, 36T T22,185,6T1
Reinsurance assats 259,562 316 e, 220,810
Accrued investment income 1,834 512 1,295,080
Other assats 13,282 457 10,076, 875

———

P 1,503,927,388 P 1,238,538291
*Excludss cash on hand of P2,810,000 in 2020 and F2, 156,600 in 2018

NN BRUBUBUBUBURBUDRDOABDRERBRM NN




WESTERN GUARANTY CORPCRATION

Nales o Financial Sialamants
Decombar 31, 2020 and 20719
Fage 34
Credit Quality
The credit quality of financial assels is as follows:
Az of Decembar 31, 2020
Maither past due nor impaired Past dus
High grade  Standard grade & impaired Todal
Cash and cash equivalants® P 111824675 P . P P 111,824,675
Short-term investments 24 B85, 363 . - 4,655,353
Financial Assats:
AFS 12,265,809 13,266,755 . 25,522,564
HTM 200,789,135 - - 300,789,135
Loans and recelvables - 2,400,000 - 2,400,000
insurance balances receivable Ta2,538,848 1,277,418 Ted, 816,367
Reinsurance assets - 257,805,888 1,756,428 259,562,116
Accrued investment income - 1,834,512 . 1,834,512
Cther assets - 13,282,457 - 13,262,457

P 449,774,982 P 1,051,11B,560 P

3,033,847 P 1,503,927,368

“Exivdes cash an hand of P2E10,000
As of December 31, 2018
Meither past due nor impaired Past due
High grade Standard grade & impaired Total
Cash and cash equnalenis® P 142224807 P - P - P42 224 607
Shorl-temm imesiments 25,923 182 - - 25,923,182
Financial Assets:
AFS 12,524 495 12,682,873 . 25,407 468
H™A 228 804 518 - 229 Bl 518
LLoans and receivables - 2,400,000 2,400,000
Insurance balances recehable - T2 185671 T2 1855871
Reinsurance assels - 79,220,910 T9.220.910
Accrued imestment income - 1,265,080 1,286,060
Oiher assels - 10,076, 875 10,078,875
P 410,476,802 P B28,061,489 P P 1,238.538,291

“Exciudas cash on hang of FZ. 156 800
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The following table discusses the methodologies that the Company used to grade financial assets:
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Fimancial asset I“;‘Tt Measurement basis
Cash and cash Cash deposits with universal and commercial |
equivalents and Short- High grade | banks in the Philippines
term invesimeants
Standard Cash deposits that are not classified as high
grade grade accounts,
Debt securities Highgrade | Debl securfies issued by the Philippine
government which are considerad rizk free,
Debt securities thal are issued by privale
corporations that possesses the capacity to meet
financial abligation.
Standard Debt securites thal are not classified as High
grade grade securities
Equity securities High grade | Listed equity securities belonging to PSEI
Standard Equity securities not belonging to PSEI
rade
Insurance and Higgh grade | The counterparties have a very rarmobe kalshood
reinsurance accounts of default and have consistently exhibited good
and deposits paying habits
Standard Standard grade accounts are aclive accounts
grade with propensity of detericrating to mid-range age
buckets. Thesa accounts are typically ot
impaired as the counterparties generally respond
o cradit actions and update their payments
accordinghy.

The aging analysis of Insurance Balance Receivables and Reinsurance Recoverable on Paid and
Unpaid Losses follows:

Direct and Assumed Aocournbs
Due from Due from  Funds held
Agunts & Cading kv Cading Relnsuranea Loss Aecows mble
] Brokers  Compasdes Companies Total Pald Unpaid Total
3 days P BOASESH P I3NBGE P SBISS P 09135505 P 150091 P MEMIM4 P 82391205
B days BE,165.45%3 12,684,758 - 00,850,258 §7.38 1,133,343 B, 230,74
over B days EMEIR M 3,305,183 201,019 5T3,E030 438004 13 5SS081 145050 1T
P T0386353% P HS137803 P BEMEM P TEIRMEIET P SADI2ETT P HABIEEN P 245560 1E
Cerpct and Assumed Acoounts
D fro D fom Funds hasd
Agerts & Cading by Cading Reirsusance Loss Recoerable
20t Brokes Companies Comsaiirt Total Pasd Urpaid Tokal
30 days P i8R0 P BOORSEY P LEOEEY P 125183835 P P #EMEEE P 963165,66
B0 days 135,867 560 T AIT B 143 285, 355 11,925,000 11,925,000
ouir B0 dawys 808 537 538 A2 ETT, TS 23,130 453 T 451 24801 B35 26 877 138 51,779 N

P OBEOOESAI0 P SA30BMI P ZERLIME P TXEUBSETI P OMBIES P MRS P TEINMO0




WESTERN GLMARANTY CORPORA TN
Nates lo Fnancial' Siafemants
Decombar 31, 2020 and 2079

Page 26

Liguicty Ris!
Liquidity or funding risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet
commitments associated with financial instruments. Liquidity risk may result from either the inability
to sell financial assats quickly at their fair values, or counter party failing on repayment of contractual
obligation; or inability to generate cash inflows as anficipated.

The Company manages liquidity through a liquidity risk policy which determines what constitutes
liquidity riek for the Company; specifies minimum proportion of funds to meet emergency calls; satting
up contingency funding plans; specify the sources of funding and the vents that would trigger the
plan; concentration of funding sources; reporting of liquidity risk exposures and breaches to the
manitaring authority; maonitaring compliance with liquidity risk policy and review of liguidity risk policy
for pertinence and changing anvirenmeant

The Company maintains adequate highly liquid assets in the form of cash and cash equivalents to
assure necessary liquidity.

Contractual maturities of financial assels and liabiities as at December 31, 2020 and 2010 are
presented below:

Contractual maturities

=1 = 1 yaar >

2020 (in thousand) yoar < § yaars yEars Total
Financial assets that are :
Cash and cash equivalents P 111825 P - P - P 111,825
Short-term investmenits 24 885 - - 24,8495
HTM 88,609 185,583 38,597 300,785
Loans and receivables 2,400 - . 2,400
Insurance balances receivable 763,818 - : 763,816
Reinsurance asseis 259,582 - - 259,562
Accruad investmant income 1,835 - - 1,835
Cther assets 13,282 - - 13,282
Financial liabilities
Insurance claims payable 321,200 - . 321,200
Accounts payable ]

and accrued expenses 128,398 - - 138,398
Reinsurance liabilities 62,074 - - 82,074

Confraciual maburities
o = yEar bE

2019 fin theusand) year < & years YEarg Tobal
Financial assels thal are :
Cazh and cash equhalens P 142225 P - p - P 142235
Shodt-tarm imesimenis 25,923 - - 25 823
HTM 107 601 B3, 588 8 618 29,805
Loans and receivables 2,400 - - 2,400
Insurance balances recenable 722 186 - - T22,.188
Rensurance assels 78,221 - . 78,221
Accrued imestment Income 1,295 - - 1,295
Ciher assefs 10,077 - - 10,077
Financial lisbilties:
Insuranca claims payable 127,242 . . 127242
Apcourls payable

and scorued expenses 142,186 - - 142 186



WESTERN GUARANTY CORPORATION
Nafes io Financial Sdatemanis
Dacembar 31, 2020 and 2018

Page 27

EEEEEEEEEEEEE R EEEEE T T ECCIE R R R

It is unusual for a Company primarily transacting insurance business to predict the requirameants of
funding with absolute certainty as the theory of probability is applied in insurance contracis o
ascertain the likely provision and time period whan such liabilitizs will require settlement. The amount
and maturities in respect of insurance liabilities are thus based on management's best estimate and
on statistical techniques and past experiance

Market rigk is the rsk of change n fair value of financial instruments from fluctuation in foreign
exchange rates (currency risk), market interest rales (interest rate risk) and market prices (price risk),
whether such change in price is caused by factors specific to the individual instrument or its issuer or
factors affecting all instruments traded in the markel

Market risk is the risk to an institution's financial condition from wolatifity in the price movemenis of
the assets contained in @ partfolio. Market risk represents what the Company would lose from price
volatilities. Market risk can be measured as the potential gain or loss in & position or portfolio that is
associated with a price movement of a given probability over a specified time horizon.

The Company manages markef risk by evenly distnibuting capital among investment Inslrumeants,
seciors and geographical areas.

The Company structures the levels of market risk it accepts throwgh a sound market risk policy based
on specific guidelines. This palicy constitutes certain limits on exposure of investmants mostly with
top-rated banks, which are selected on the basis of the bank's credit ratings, capitalization and quality
servicing being renderad to the Company. Also, the said policy includes diversification benchmarks
of investment portfolio to diferent investment types duly approvied by the IC, asset allocation reporting
and portfolio limit structure. Moreover, control of relevant market risks can be addressed through
compliance reporting of market risk exposures to the IC, regular monitoring and review of the
Company's investment performance and upcoming investment opportunities for pertinence and
changing anvironment.

Sensitivity analysis of market risk exposures follows:

i. Currancy Risk
Foreign currency risk pertains to US$ denominated cash, special savings accounts and AFS
investments. Mo foreign currency forward contracts are cutstanding as at December 31, 2020
and 2019 to hedge the foreign currency accounts.

The carrying values of financial assats exposed to currency risk at the end of reparting period are

as follows:
20 2014
Phil. Pesa s s Prhil, Flu_:l Uss
Cash and cash equialents P 2447825 § 50958 P 13211733 § 260421
Shordemn inesiments 1,170,328 24,364 1,215,240 24,000

P 36181581 § 75322 P M4BTI 5§ 284 821
“The xchange rate wsed was P4E 036 in 2000 and P 50.635 40 2019 fo USS 1.00

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonable change in the USS exchange
rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Company’s income before tax and equity:

2020 2018
Effect on Hetincome  Equity Met income Equity
5% appreciation P 451,128 P 315,790 P 553,511 P 367,458
5% depreciation (451,128) (316,720) (553,511) (387, 458)
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Imterest Rate Risk

Interast rate risk is the risk that the value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluciuate
because of changes in market interest rates. Floating rate instruments expose the Company fo
cash flow interest risk, whereas fixed interest rate instruments exposa the Company to fair value
inferast risk,

The management of interest rate risk involves maintenance of appropriate blend of financial
instruments with consideration on the maturity profile of the security. Exposures o interest rate
risk comprise the following:

As of December 1, 2020
Duse in
* 1 year but
a nterestrate " cSygars Y
Financial assets that are:
Cash and cash equivalents 0.25%-2.75% P 111,824,675 P - P .
Short-term investments 0.05% - 3% 24,895,363 .
HT™M 1.3112% - T.B18% 98,809,165 165,581,040 36,596,530
As ol Decembar 31, 2018
s in
*1 b
ik b < 1 year _:EF::;_B = § yearn
Financial assats that are:
Cash and cash equialents Bh-36% P 4IEMEIT P = P
Short-tamm imvestmeants 1.25% - 2.75% 25 523 182 - -
HT™ 2.785% - 7.28% 107600618 B3, 586,002 38,617 687

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity 1o a reasonably possible change in interest rates,
with ail other variables held constant, of the Company's profit before tax (through the impact on
fioating rate investments). There is no other impact on the Company's equity other than those
aiready affecting the profit and loss,

Effect on

Changes incoma bafora

in basis points income tax

2020 +100 P 1,524 338
- 100 (1,524,339

2018 + 100 P 1,689,278
- 100 {1,698, 274)

Price Risk

The Company’s price risk exposure at year-and relates to financial assats and labilities whoze
values will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices, principally, AFS financial assets,
Such investment securities are subject to price risk due to changes in market values of
instruments arising either from factors specific to individual instruments or their issuers or factors
affecting all instruments traded in the market.

The Company’s investments are regulated under the perinent provisions of Presidential Decree
Mo, B12, otherwise known as "The Insurance Code of the Philippines (the Code)’. The Code
generally requires all insurance companies io oblain prior approval of the Insurance Commission
(1G]} for any and all of their investments., It further requires companies to submit 1o the 1C a monthly
report on all investments made during the prévious month. The 1T reviews the investments and
may suggest or require the immediate sale or disposal of investments deemed too risky.
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For equity investments, Section 200 of the Code further provides, among other things that
insurance companias may only invest in stocks of Philippine corporations which have prior three-
year dividend payment record. Moreover, the same section limis exposure to any one institution
o 10% of an insurer's lotal admitted assets.

Beyond the provisions of the Code, the Company has established additional guidelines to control
the risks inherent in equity investments. The Company's invesiment policy requires that they
invest only in shares of companies that are listed in the Philippine Stock Exchange. Further, these
listed companies must have profitable business operations and market capitafization which are
on a scale that would qualify them as blue chips,

impact on Equity
Percentage change in market prices 2020 2018
10% - incriase P 2,652,258 P 2,540, 74T
10% - decrease |2,552,256) {2,540, 747)

iv. Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss from system failure, human error, fraud or external events.
When controls fall to perform, operational risk can cause damage to reputation, have legal or
regulatory implications or can lead to financial loss. The Company cannot expect to eliminate all
operational risk but initiating a rigorous control framewaork and by monitoring and responding to
patential risks, the Company is able to manage risk. Controls include effective segregation of
duties, access controls, authorization and reconciliation procedures, staff education and
assessment processes. Business risk such as changes in environment, technology and industry
are monitored through the Company's strategic planning and budgeting processes.

The Company's risk management functon has developed and implemented certain minimum stress
and scenario tests for identifying the risks to which the Company are exposed, quantifying their impact
on the volatility of economic capital. The results of these tests, particularly, the anticipated impact on
the realistic balance sheet and revenue account, are reported to the Company's risk management
function. The risk management function then considers the aggregate impact of the cverall capital
requirement revealed by the stress lesting to assess how much capital is needed fo mitigate the risk
of insalvency 1o a selected remote level.

The company regards the following as the capital t manages as at December 31, 2020 and 2019,

2020 2018
Share Capital P 400,000,000 P 400,000,000
Contributed Surplus 350,000 350,000
Retained Eamings 691,083,511 640,314,436

P 1,081,443,511 P 1,040,664,435

Externally imposed capital requirements are sel and regulated by the Insurance Commissicn (IC).
The requirements are put in place to ensure sufficient solvency margins. Further objectives are set
by the Company to maintain a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratos in order to support is
business objectives and maximize shareholders value.
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Pursuant to IC Circular No. 2015-02-A dated January 13, 2015 issued on the basis of Republic Act
10607 known as the Revised Insurance code, domastic insurance companies undear the supanision
of IC must have a net worth of at least P250 million by December 31, 2013, The minimum net worth
of a particular company shall remain unimpaired at all times and shall mcrease o the amounts as
follows:

Minimum networth ___Compliance date
P 550,000,000 Dacember 31, 2016
800,000,000 December 31, 2019
1,300, 000,000 December 31, 2022

Insurance Memorandum Circutar 22-2008 further clarified that the paid-up capital should remain
intact and urimpaired at all timeas, the stalemeants of financial pesition should show that the nabworth
iz at least equal to the actual paid up capital.

For the year ended December 31, 2019 and as reported in the approved synopsis, the Company did
not meet the minimum required networth. This was subsequently covered up in full through
reconsideration of subsequent collection of premium receivables.

For the year ended December 31, 2020, the Company believes that it is compliant with required
nebworth even afier the non-admitied asseats,

Risk-Based Capital Requirement
The IC has adopted a three (3) pillar risk-based approach to solvency which comprise the following:

» Quantitative requirements in relation o the calculation of capital requirements and
recogition of eligible capital;

* Governance and risk management requirement that consists of supervisory rewview
process which may include a supervisory adjusiment to capital;, and

¢+ Disclosure requirement designed to encourage market discipline.

The minimum RBC ratio is set at 100% which are requried to be maintained at all Gmes. Failure to
meet the minimum RBC ratio shall subject the Company to the corresponding regulatory intervention
which has been dafined at various levels as follows:

+ Company Action Event = the RBC is less than 100% but not below T5%, the Company is
required to identify the conditions that contributed to the event and will provide cormactive
actions that company intend to fake including future projections of financial position and
analysis of operations.

= Regulatory Action Event — the RBC is less than 75% but not below 50%, tha Company is
required to submit an RBC plan and IC will perform an examination of the Company including
its RBC plan.

= Authorized and Mandatory Conirol Event — the RBC is less than 50. The Company is placed
under the regulatory control of IC.

The REC ratio is calculated as Total Available Capital (TAC) divided by the REC requirement. TAC
shall include the (i) paid-up capital, (ii) other capital surplus and (iii) Special surplus funds to the extent
authorized by IC.

Internal calculations of Net Worth and RBC ratio as at December 31, 2020 in comparison o actual
figures as confirmed in the 1C Synopsis for 2019 revealed the following:

2020 2018
Networth P 1,100,240,592 P  1,088.581,257
RBC requirement 124,743,831 100,819,704
REC ratio BEZ% 1062%
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The computation of RBC is based on the regulatory accounting policy in accordance the Philippine
Insurance Code. The RBC can be determined only after the acocounts of the Company have been
examined by the IC.

B. Cash and Cash Equivalents
This account consgisis of.
2 N 2020 2019
iCash on Hand P 2810000 P 21558600
Cash in Banks 85,058,909 135,775,084
Cash Equivalents 12,765,766 6,449,513

P 114,634,676 P 144 381 207

Cash on Hand represents petty cash fund, commission fund and various branch operating funds while
Cash in banks represent cash deposited in various reputable |local banks that eamn interests at the
respective banks' deposit rates.
Cash Equivalents arg short-lerm placements made for varying periods of between one day and three
months depending on the immediate cash requiremants of the Company, and eam interest at the
respective shor-term placements rates.
Cash in Bank and Cash Equivalents earn interest at prevailing bank interest rates. Interest income
earned on these deposits amounted to P385 684 in 2020 and P52,702 in 2019, (See Mote 25)

9. Short-term Investments
This account consists of time deposit with maturity of mone than three monthe but less than one year
from the date acquired. As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the balance of short-term investments
amounted to P24,895 363 and P25, 823,182 respectively.
Shaort-term investments earn interest at annual interest rates ranging from 0.05% to 3% and 1.25%
to 2.75%, in 2020 and 2019, respectively. Interest income eamed on these investments amounied to
F360,823 in 2020 and P469,330 in 2019. (Sea MNole 25)

10, Financial Assets

This account consists of the following:

2020 2019
Available-for-sale (AFS) imestments P 25522564 P 25407468
Held-to-maturity (HTM) imestments 300,789,135 229,804,518
Loans and receivable 2,400,000 2,400,000
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The reconciliation of the carrying amounts of financial assets at the beginning and end of the year is
pravided below:

Decombor 31, 2020

Loans and
AFS HTM __receivables Total
Balance, January 1 P 25407468 P 220B04518 P 2,400,000 P 257511936
Acquisitions 863,847 178,273,587 - 180,237 544
Sale/Maturity (266,534)  [(107,558,834) - (107 825, 368)
Changes in Fair Value (562,317} " . (582,317)
Amortization of Premium - (730,146) - {730,145)
Balance, December 31 P 25522564 P 300789138 P 2400000 P 328,711.89%
December 31, 2019
Loans and
AFS HTM mcanablas Tatal
‘Balance, January 1 P 35513118 P 226451006 P 2400000 P 264364124
Acquisitions 1.258, 569 53,418,819 - 54 B77.388
Sale/Maturity (1.573,107) (45,918,819 . (51,491,526)
Changes in Fair Value (8,791,112} - - (8,791,112)
Amartization of Premium - {146, 468 - (148 488)
Balance, Decenber 31 P 26407 46E P 220804518 P 2400000 P 257611836
vailable-for-Sale Ei il A
Thi breakdown of this account is as follows:
2020 2019
Acqguisition Cost:
Listed Equity Securities
Common P 35135167 P 34 437 754
Prefermad 7,000 7,000
Equity Fund 5,000,000 5,000,000
40,142 167 30 444 754
‘Changes in Fair Value:
Listed Equity Securities
Common (14,217,103) (16,520,288)
Prefemad {7,000} 2,483,000
Equity Fund (385,500) -

___(14,619,603)  (14.037,288)
P 250522564 P 25407468

Listed equity securities represents shares of stock that are traded in the Philippine Stock exchange
Equity fund are pocled funds managed by the Philamiife group. Fair values are determined in a
manner discussed in Nate B,

Realized gains on these investments reported in the statement of comprehensive income are as
follows:

2020 2019
Divdend Income P 168,660 P 181,752
Gain (Loss) on Sale of Equity Securities 1,2™ (258, 350)
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The reconciliation of unrealized fair value losses are as fallows:

2020 2018
Balance al the beginming of the year P (14,037,288) P  [4,235849)
Fair value adjustments taken fo:

Other Comprehensive income (582,317) I:E.:ENAEE;
(14,6159,8603) (14,0375,

Hald-fo-Ma Financral Assals
The breakdown of this account is as follows:

-

N 2020 2019

Government Securnties P 284087420 P 216,000,000
Corporate Bonds 15,000,000 13,000,000
299,087,420 229,000,000

Unamorized Premium, Net of Discounts 1,701,715 B4 518

P 300,789,135 P 229,804,518

Govermnment securities has a maximum term of 25 years with coupans rates ranging from 1.312% to
7.375%, Government securities with face value of P284.09 millian in 2020 and P218 millicn in 2019,
are deposited with the Insurance Commission in accordance with the provision of the Insurance Code
as security for the benefit of the policyholders and creditors of the Company.

Corporate bonds are issuwed by various private corporations for a period ranging from 1 year to 5
years and bears interest at the rate of 2 5% t0 6.75% payable quarterly or semi-annually

The net changes in unamortized premium is charged to interest income amounting to P730,146 in
2020 and (P146.487) in 2018,

The centractual maturities of Held-to-Maturity investments are as follows:

2020 2019
‘Due within 12 months P 98,587,420 F 107 500,000
Due after 1 year but not more than 5 years 164,500,000 B3,500,000
Due bayond 5 yvears. 38,000,000 38,000,000

P 299,087,420 P 229,000,000

Loans and receivable

This account represents loans granted that are collateralized by real estate morigaged. As of
December 31, 2020 and 2019, the camrying value of the loan amounting to P2.4 million is fully
recoverable,
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11. Insurance Balance Receivables

The breakdown of this account is as follows:

2020 2018
Due from Agents and Brokers P 703,663,830 P 660,995 430
Due from Ceding Companias 51,327,803 58,309,113
Funds held by ceding companies 8,824 634 2,881,119
763,816,367 T22 185,671

Allowance for impairment losses {1,277,419)

P 762,538,948 P V22, 1&55?1

Premium receivables have an average fterm 20 days to 120 days. Premium receivables represant
premiums on written policies.

Reinsurance recoverable on paid losses pertains o the Company's receivables from the reinsurers
for their share on the losses paid by the Company.

Due from ceding companies and reinsurers pertains fo premiums collectible resulting from treaty and
facullative acceptances from ceding companies.

Funds held by ceding companies pertain to the portion of the premium withheld by ceding companies
in accordance with the reinsurance contracts.

Thens & no concentration of credit risk with respect o insurance receivables, as the Company has a
diverse base of agents, brakers and reinswurers.

Allowance for impairment losses s individually determined taking into account the age, collection
experience, historical loss experience and collateral held.

As of December 31, 2020, allowance for impairment losses is broken down as follows:

“Due from ceding companies P 1277419
Reinsurance recoverable on paid losses 1,756,428

P 3033847

12. Reinsurance Assets

This account consists of.
2020 2018
Resere for Reinsurance Premium (see Mote 18) P 70287019 P 57,134 445
Reinsurance Recoverable on:
Paid Losses 48,012,677 24,801,885
Unpaid Losses (see Note 18) 211,548,638 54, 410,025
329,859,335 136,355,355
Allowance for impairment losses (1,756, 428)

P 328,102,907 P 136, 355355
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The movement of Reinsurance Recoverable an Paid Losses is as follows:

= 2020 2a
Balance, January 1 P 24801885 P 31,7837B3
Reinsurers’ shame of losses 23,657 4T3 B75
Settlemant (446, 681) {6.992.573)
Balance, December 31 P 48012677 P 24801885
13. Investment Properties
A5 of December 31, the movemeant of this account is as follows:
2020 2019
Cost
Al January 1 P 9330282 P 80,802,826
Additions 5, 500,000 2,500,000
Al December 31 98,802,826 3,302,828
Accumulated increase in fair value
Al Jarary 1 125,865,563 83,065,563
Fair value gain during the year - 45, 800,000
Al Decembar 31 129,865,563 120,BB5 563

P 228,668,388 P 223168389

Cartain investment properties were acquired in extinguishment of debt by way of bond collateral

The increase in camying value of investment properties amounting P46.8 million in 2019 arose from
the appraisal conducted on December 27, 2018 by Tan-Gatue Appraisal Associafes, Inc., an
independent firm of appraiser and a speciakst in valuing these types of investment properties. The
change in fair value is reported as Unrealized Fair Value Gain on Investment Properties in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Investment properties consists of.

2020 2018
Land
Cebu Gity P 124197578 P 124,197,578
Antipolo, Rizal §0,000,000 50,000,000
San Mateo, Rizal 14,755,000 14,755,000
Cagayan de Oro 8,000,000 2,500,000
Bataan 5,860,364 5,850 384
Quazon City 2,984,952 2,084, 952
Condominium Unit
Makati City 1,800,000 1,800,000
Equity on damaged condominium property 21,070,495 21,070,495

525660080 F 225168385

As of December 31, 2020 and 2018, there were no income generated from investment properties
above. Direct cost relating to these properies excluding deprecialion expense amounied o
P207.537 in 2020 and P135,338 in 2018,

The equity claim on damaged condominium property represents the residual interest of the Company
over the condominium propery that was completely gutted by fire in 2018, Prior to the fire incident,
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the Company owns a total of 1,023 square meters of condominium units which the Company
previously occupies as its head office, Collectively, the Company's interest is equivalent to 13% of
the entire property. As of July 1, 2021 the insurance claim of the condominium association amounting
to P150 million have been setfled. Meanwhile, the latest valuation of the lot where the condominium
was previously located was estimated to ba PG00 million. Hence, management balieves that the
carmying amount of damaged condominium property is fully recoverable.

As of July 1. 2021, the idea of constructing a high rise building within the damaged property is given
due considerations by the condominium corporation

As of December 31, 2020 and 2018, no investment properties has been pledged as collateral or
security for any of the Company's liabilities and the Company has no restrictions on the realizability
of investment properties and no contractual obligation to purchase, construct or developed or for
repairs, maintenance for enhancements.

Fair value information of investment properties is presented in Note 6.

14,

Property and Equipment - Net
The breakdown of this account is as follows:

Leasehold  Office Equipment EF Tnnpotation  Rightollse

] Badings Improenens Fumiter BFitess  Equipment  Equigmest Asels ot 12 Tatl
Coas
Kb Jasuary 1, 2020 P BANNO P SBKNE P WERNI P MM P NB P WO P NMRET
kidtins . : ME LW A 2
A Decamber 31, 200 RGN0 GER OELIT MM REIAD  GPRAT WL
Roumuaed deprecisbon
At January |, 200 100H0 1318 B OLME TR WM ABm
Provisions 19040 1%l WIS LAMEY G LORIE sTH
At Dicember 11, 500 T T LMK ARRM BTG B RO
Net Carrying Value
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Had the buildings been carried at cost less accumulated depraciation, their carmying amounts would
have bean as follows:

2020 2018

Cost P 26,027,597 P 26,027.597
Accumulated depreciation

Balance, January 1 3,747,311 2,706,207

Provisions 1,041,104 1,041,104

" Balance at end of year 4,788,415 3,747,311

P 21,238182 P 22 280286

15. Deferred Acquisition Costs (DAC) and Deferred Commission Income {DEI}

Movements of this account during the year are as follows:

Deferred Deferred

Commision Commision
2020 Expensa Income Met DAC
‘Balances, beginning P 93635248 P 12,642,734 P 80,992,514
Met changes in acquisition cost (sae Note 27) 15,496,697 (579,874) 16,076,3T

F 108,131,845 P 12,063,060 P 97,068 885

Defemed Deferred

Commision Commision
2018 Expense ncome Net DAC
‘Balances, beginning P 72485785 P 1202628 P 58,560.157
Me! changes in acquisition cost (see Note 27) 21,149,453 (279.804)  21.429.357

P 93635248 P 12642734 P 80,982,514

As at December 31 2020 and 2018, management believes that DAC are fully recoverable and that
no impairment loss is necessary.

16. Accrued investment Income

The sources of this account are as follows:;

2020 1A
Accrued inferest on:
Gowemment Securitles P 1,821,867 P 1232510
Cash equhalents and Shor-lerm inestments 4,508 -
Comporate Bonds 2,222 -
Loans and mcenables 815 2450

P 1,834,512 P 1295080
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17. Other Assets

This account consists of,
2020 i

Due from:

Employees P 11,481,800 F B,676,700

Agenis 1,500,420 1,334 267
Software cost 7,400,000 =
Creditable withholding tax 4,453,403 5,866,050
Deposits 234,228 -
Prepayments 186,333 .
Security fund 65,908 £5,908

P 25362193 P 15542 925

The description of these accounts are as follows:

Due from employeses and Agants have a maturty of less than 12 months collectible thru
payroll deductions or commissions due.

Software cost represant the acquisition cost of Enterprise-wide system for Non-life Insurance
which is camied at cost. Recognition of depreciation expense will commence in 2021,

Creditable withholding tax pertains to the Company’s tax withheld at source by its customers,
Thesa can be credited against the income tax lability of the Company.

Prepaymenis include unused supplies and prepaid insurance.

Deposits consist mainly of rental and utility deposits in relation to the Company's rental of
office space.

Security fund was created under Section 365 of Presidential Decree (PD) No. 612 as
amended under PD No. 1640, 1o be used for payment of allowed claims against insolvent
insurance companies, The balance of the fund amounting to PE35,808 in 2020 and 2018
represants the Company's confribution to the fund. The balance of the fund eams interest at
ratles determined by the 1C annually.

18. Reserve for Unearmed Premiums

The analysis of this account is as follows:

2 Fitil:]
Gros Ceded Met (Emss Cedad hed
Premiism Business Retsined Presmium Busingss Retaired
Balances, Jarvary 1 P M8680331 P S0 445 P 201545886 P 75705474 P 53550403 P Z2213% 581
Policiss Wiriten
Durirg the Year 531,152,807 151,639,362 851345 058 275,005 115,584 8RS 838,250,118
Pramiums Eamed

During the Year (S59,381,0M0)  (138476,688) (TSOS0NZY) (BRSO 14E) (16418537  (T6R.841.210)

P 30452128 P TOO9T.0M9 P 320155108 P 348680331 P ST1M445 P 291545586
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In accordance with IC circular 2016-67, Premium liabilities for each class of business shall be
determined as the higher of Uneamed Premium Reserve (UPR) and Unexpired Risk Reserve (URR).
UPR is calculated using the 24" method for all classes of busingss, on a gross of reinsurance basis.
URR is calculated as the best estimate of future obligation, expenses for policy managemeant and
claims settlement cost URR may be estimated a3 the unearnaed premium for each class of business
multiplied by the ultimate loss ratio and adjusted for future expenses.

The comparative actuarial valuation result for premium liabilities for the year ended Dacembaear 31,
2020 and 2015 is as follows:

Gross

2020 2019

UPR (a) P 380,452,128 P 348,680,331

URR (b)

Best Estimate of Future Obligation 171,985,000 156,437,000
Maintenance Expenses 6,954,000 1,478,000
Clzims Handling Expenses 1,592,000 1,375,000
Margin for Adverse Deviation 32,854,348 25126501
213,385,349 164 416,591

Premium Liability (whichever is higher batween a and b) P390,452,128 P348 680,331

18,

Insurance Claims Payable

Outstanding claims become payable and materialize into claims paid when the amounts of insured
losses suffered by policyholders are ascertained and agreed, without any contractual maturity date.
The timing of future cash outfiow arising from the provision is not ascertainable but is likely to fall
within 3 years,

The provision is sensitive to many factors such as interpretation of circumstances, judicial decisions,
economic condifions, climatic changes and is subject to uncertainties such as:

+ Lincertainty as to whether an event that cccurred could give rise to a policyholder suffering an
insured loss:

+ Uncerainty as to the extent of the policy coverage and limits applicable; and

+ Uncertainty as to the amount of insured loss suffered by a policyholder as a result of the event
QCCUImng.

The analysis of thiz account is shown below:

i | 2o

Gross  Reinsurance Bt Gu_:s Hﬁ_uwm hiet
Balances, knuaty 1 PITMT P S4413005 P T2B22TH P 16501667 P 20463610 P 148553 M7
(laims and Losses ncumed -
Met of Recovernss RS 50) TSRV (OTEBTEIET) (482454081 TNMERAII  (E14.080404)
Provision for Incumed bt not
Regorted Claims aTEOTEND  MEMI4  ERETEIE  Gl4B4dER MBESESA?  45BOSHIT
Claims &gl Losses Pai -
Net of Recoweries NSITMD  (195AREM)  MSONHN)  MESAR  (104329550) 44058530

P 321,200,008 P 211549639 P 109650370 P 127041747 P 4419025 P T2E2TH
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In accordance with 1C circular 2016-67, claims liabilities for both direct business, assumed treaty and
reinsurance business shall be calculated as the sum of outstanding claims reserve, claims handling
expenses and IBNR.

Claims handling expenses is computed on a net insurance basis using the Kittle's Refinement to the
Classical Paid-to-Paid Ratio Method that exphcitly recognized that claims handling expenses is
incurred as claims are reported, even if no loss payments are made.

MFAD is included to allow the inherent uncertainty of the best estimate of the policy reserves and to
consider the variability of claims expariance with a class of business, the diversification between
classes of business and conservatism in the best estimate.

The actuarial valuation result for Claims Liabilities for the year ended December 31, 2020 and 2019
is as follows:

Gross
2020 20148
Dutstanding claims reserve P 223,056,033 P  60,548530
Claims handling expense 178,222 27,880
IBNR 78,636,729 56,529,002
Miad 19,329,025 9,736,235

P 321,200,009 P 127241747

Met of Reinsurance

2020 2018
Outstanding claims nesena P 40,392 517 P 23452768
Claims handling expense 127,412 27,651
IBNR 61,423,375 39,870,451
Miad 7,707,066 9,461,851

P 109,650,370 F 72,822 T3

Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

This account consists of.

2020 2019
Other Taxes Payabie P 114,229,183 P 101,430 528
income Tax Payable 7,706,635 36,252 883
Fremium Deposits 4,138,824 3,238 823
Accrued Expanses 2323912 1,263,278

P 128,398,464 P 142 185511

The tafms and conditions of these accounts are as follows:

Cihar Taxes Payable represent documentary stamps, nef output vat, premium taxes and other local
government taxes outstanding as of the Statement of Financial Position date.

Accrued Expenses represent curment liabilities due to varous suppliers outstanding as of the
Staternent of Financial Position date, represanting expenses, shared or otherwise direct expenses
incurred in its narmal coursa of aperation.

Premivm Deposits represent collection of advance premium payments for new and existing
insurance policy renewals, subsequently offset from premium receivable upon policy Esuance.




e - e

Reinsurance Liabilities
The movements of this account are as follows:

As of December 31, 2020
Due to  Funds held for

rainsurars = reinsurers Total
Balance at the beginning P 12565846 P  22964TES P 35530815
Additions 71,181,493 58,456, 842 129,638,335
Reductions (58,020,915) (45,074,414) (103,095,329)
Balance at the end of year P 25726424 P 36,3477 P 62,073,641

#As of December 31, 2018

Due 1o Funds neld for
o eI Urers reinswers Total
Balance at the begimning P 25825368 P 21743016 P 47,568,384
Additions 88,843,007 52 574,150 141,417,188
Reductions (102,102, 524) (51,352,388) (153,454 915)
Balance at the end of year P 12565846 P 22054789 P 35530635

Shara Capital
The Company’s capital structure as at December 31, 2020 and 2018 is as follows:
- Shares Amount
Authorized - P100 par walue per share 10,000,000 P 1,000, 000,000
kssued and oulstanding 4 000, 000 400, 000, 000

As at December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company has 6 stockholders owning 100 or more shares
each

WESTERN GUARANTY CORPORATION
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Insurance Contracts — Terms, Assumption and Sensitivities

Terms and Conditions

The major classes of general insurance written by the Company include motor, property, casualty,
maring and angineering. Risks under these policies usually cover a 12-month duration.

For general insurance confracts, claims provisions (comprising provisions for claims reported by
policyholders and IBNR claims) are established to cover the ultimate cost of settfing the liabilities
with respect to claims that have occurred and are estimated based on known facts at the reporting
date.

The provisions are reviewed quarterly as part of a regular ongoing process as claims experience
develops, certain claims are settled and further claims are reported. Outstanding claims provisions
are not discounted for the time value of monay.

The measurement process primarily includes projections of future claims through the use of historical
experience statistics. In certain cases, where there is a lack of reliable historical data on which to
estimate claims development, relevant benchmarks of similar businesses are used in developing
claims estimates. Claims provisions are separately analyzed by geographical area and class of
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business. In addition, relatively claims are usually assessed by third party Loss Adjusters engaged
by the Company.

Assumplions

The principal assumption underlying the estimates is the Companys past claims development
experience. This includes assumptions with respect to average claim cosis, claim handling costs,
claims infiation factors, and claim numbers for each accident year. Judgment is used to assess the
extent to which exitemnal faciors such as judicial decisions, climatic changes amd governmant
legisiation affect the estimates. Other key assumptions include variation in interest and delays in
settlement,

Sensitivities

The general insurance claims provision is sansitive to the above key assumptions, There are select
sensitivities to certain variables such as legislative changes and inherent uncertainties in the
estimation process which are impossible to quantify. Furthermore, because of delays that arise
between oocurrence of a claim and s subsequent notification and eventual settlement, the
outstanding claim provisions are not known with cartainty at reporting date. Consequently, the
ultimate habilities will vary a5 a result of subsequent developments. Differances resulting from
reassessments of the ultimate labilties are recognized in subsaquent financial stalements.

Since cerain proportional reinsurance facilities are in place, the Company's net exposure o these
sensitivities is minimal. The Company considers that the liability recognized in the statemant of
financial position is adequate. However, actual experience will differ from the expected outcome.
Sensitivity tests are set out below, showing the impact on profit and loes and eqguity.

% change in impact on incoma Impact on aquity

loss ratic 2020 2019 2020 2019
5% +P37.5 million  +P385million +P26.2 million  +P26.0 million
58 -P37.5million -P38Smillion -P26.2milllon - P25.9 million







(Gross Insurance Contract Lisbittes in 2018
Endol O year fater Two years Three years Four years Fre years
later igber later later

Soven pearg Iml.ﬁ:_E..
later later Tolal

§0 P G0BRETI P WSEETI P S0B086T!
106,578,009 . 106,578,008

| 1022288 P SS5TSE0 P COBIIG06 P DOBSEETI P OOMBETI P COMMBETI P
172768 01T 10TOIBM0 AMSAT W75 10731542

152,480,182 135,851,381 19172440 17031850 179317440 18446700 184,046,700
116,000900 20427973  Z55HOME 06MMEOTI 205X 24063 204,963,8M
1770020 2202 0 ZEIMXNS D00 2NN - 239.380,6
15762307 MUMROM0  MOITTET 25658071 . 256,588, T
MIIT2692  MaTSASSR  mAaMMT A 203,131, 147
MM 3508377 - 305,083,778
243,876,338 - - . . . . . 243,876,338
MBTE I TLOE I 20,130,041 Z65eATd ZmshAe] 4063400 106, 578,009 SESEET 204,557,068
25,661,143 35005 2,484,469

(182967807)  (WGSTIT08)  (MNEINT)  (S4238091) (238040481  (205308863)  (INSSLAN (106306408  (BO.BSBETY)  |1.948780,686)

BESS06T4 P MMSTS P 1000 P IS0 P 4GB0 P QB P (MDY P MiEN P - P

N Net Insurance Confract Liskilities in 2019
Endel  One yearlaler Two years Three yeas Four pears Fre years B Sewen years Eight years
Accident year later later kaber later Lk zter later Total

i

BTIBG108 P 7ISATIEE P TOS4IB68 P TOG0GTSEI P TOGOGTSI P TOG0G252 P TOMOMNS P TRB0E2S! P TAGMG2R P TOEOG2W
74,140,073 T4 414,241 75,115,104 75,417 847 5,357 802 75,357,802 76,048 100 76,545,800 . 6,545,800

WLATITAE 10331025 107003086 0 1M4302456 1551 1Z3SBEM 1I5MAM 123,536,814
126800288  M49TOTE  MO.040450  USOMETI  M04SRENE 140468508 . 148 458 508
198,773,611 S ATAIT 45180550 154845562 154 B455E2 5 154 345 562
198,060,833 17O M TH 1847E278 188,301,163 ; : . 2 : 188,391,183
172,020,238 235,058,100 15,289,568 . . . . ; 239,280 558
76,040880 256919015 : . . . 1 . . 25,519,015
167,226,154 i = : : ; ; 2 i 197,236, 184
197,206,194 26019015 0200568  168,091063 154845552  Aa4EE S 12350681 05090 ToooAaw 14852069066
P ko IANE 8 Mbsd 27,990,563 17 815,254 &5 305 917
Cumnhatin paymorts 1o date (176,206,346) (56709535 (2283793  (187300778)  (154760803)  (1SO4B0ETT)  (120S36810)  (SMT0ST)  (O.606.25Y) (1L4MNZ25)

Ll twcogrzed i the
Mimnerts ofbancal positon P 43010511 P 1807 P 1005775 P 1090385 P 104750 P (\M12Z79) P 3000004 P 158643 P - P TERIE
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Analysis of premiums is as follows:

Direct and Ceded HNet Premiums

2020 Assumed Business Retained
Premiums Written P 931,152,807 P 151,539,263 P 770,513,544

Changes in Unexpired Risk (41,771,797} {13,162,676) (28,609,223)
Net P BES.381,010 P 13B4TE6BE P 750,904 322
Direct and Caded Net Premiums

2019 __Assumed Business Retained

Premiums Written P 859235006 P 119984888 P B30250.118
Changes in Unexpired Risk (T2.974,658) (3,565,951) {68, 408,907)
et F EBBEZE0148 P 116418937 P V&0, 841,211

25. Interest and Other Investment Income, Net
Interest and ather investment income consist of
2020 2018
Interesl MHoome
HTM Financial Assets P 9473.760 P B.373,331
Cash and Cash Equivalenis [see Note B) IBE, B84 52,702
Shon-temn Invesiments (see Mote B 350,823 458, 330
Othars B4, 2594 -
Divdend Income (see MNote 10) 168, 880 181,752
Gain (Loss) on Sale of Equity Securities 1.271 (255, 380)
Unrealized Loss on Foreign Exchange {134,034) -
Migcellaneous . 613,738
P 10,505,558 F 9,431,803
26. Claims, Losses and Adjustment Expenses

Analysis of claims, losses and adjustment expenses paid is as follows:

For the year ended December 31, 2020

Direct and
Assumed Recoveries Nat

Claims and Losses
Loss Adjustment Expenses

P 323,320,038 P 19,648,811 P 303,660,227
2,049,764 : 2,049,764

P 325,376,802 P 19,648,811 P 305,728,991

For the year ended Decembar 31, 2018

Direct and
Assumed Recowerias Mgt

Clwms and Losses
Loss Adjustment Expenses

F 385857883 P 104320550 P 281523443
2,357 449 - 2,357 449

P 388215442 P 104,328,550 P 283 885882
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27. Commission Expense and Commission Income

The composition of this account is as follows:

200 209
Commission Commission  Commission  Commission
Expanse Income Expense Income

Dhrec! Business P 166007828 P = P 18425871 P
Reinsurance Business 4,580,036 26,902,259 6,512, 302 28,839,247
Tolal 170,677,864 %0225 12258173 28,839 247

Increased{Decrease) in DACDC! (zoe Mole 15) 15,486,847

(57T9.674) 21140463 (279,804)

P 186174561 P MI1D585 P 144087635 P 28556353

Standard commigsion rate for direct and reinsurance business ranges from 5% to 37.5%.

2B. General and Administrative Expenses

Genaral and administrative expenses consist of:

2020 2019
Salanes and Allowances P 66400128 P 57426307
Transportation and Travel 21,115,368 23,482 137
Fent 10,138,976 15,411,351
Depreciation and Amorization 8,582,739 10,166,045
Frinting and Cffice Supplias B,B71,353 5,065,419
Communication and Postage B, 333,808 8,356 178
Fepairs and Maintenance 7,842 801 15,545 928
Audit and Legal Fees 7,705,728 £.434 130
Advertising and Promotions 7,047,939 8,723,960
Representation and Enfertainment 6,200,933 5,380,256
Ratirerment 3,682,993 1,403,834
Ermloyee Welfare and Other Benefils 4,831,752 TATS TIT
Training and Developrrent 4,389, 892 2,117 448
Insurance 3,776,860 3,972,358
Taxes and Licenses 3,204,845 4,145,115
Impairment Loss 3,033,847 .
Light and Water 2,175,128 2 550,488
Azzociation and Poal Dues 1,858,049 1,041, 442
Bank Charges 846,174 625,960
Interest 240,112 4T 242
Miscellaneous 8,237,791 8,998, 305

P 180,727,919 P 188343772

Miscellaneous expenses consist mainly of assessment fees paid to Insurance Commission, funeral
contributions for its employees, and expenses incurred by its skeletal force workers.
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28. Retirement Benefit Cost

On May 1, 1959, the Company established the Western Guaranty Corporation Retirement Plan (the
Plan), a non-contributory and defined banefit type retirement plan. Membership in the Plan is
automatic for all officers and employees of the Company who are considered having regular
employment status. Normal retirement is upon attainment of 60 years old with at least five years of
credited service. Late retirement may allowed up to the age of 70 years old. Early retirament may be
allowed subject to the consent of the Company, provided a member has completed at least 5 years
of credited service.

Retirement benefit is equivalent to 22.5 days pay for every year of credited service. The benefit is
paid in a lump sum upon retirement or separation in accordance with the terms of the plan.
Contribution to the plan and eamings thereof are managed by a trustee, The Plan has no specific
maiching strategy between the Plan asset and the Plan liabilities. The Company is not required to
pre-fund the defined benefit obligation payable under the plan before they become due. The amount
and timing of contribution to the plan asset are at the Company's discration. However, in the event
a benefit claim arises and the plan asset is insufficient to pay the claim, the shortfall will then be due
and payable to the plan asset

Annual normal cost amounted to P3.682,993 and P1,403 804 in 2020 and 2018, respectively. As of
December 31, 2020 and 2019, the plan asset amounted to P22 245 601 and P31,4565,050 which is
equivalent to the retirement benefit obligation at year end. Normal cost is computed using the
Projected Unit Credit Method. Under this method, annual normal cost is the present value of
retirement benefits payable in the future in respact of services in the current period.

The composition of plan asset is as follows:

2020 2019
‘Cash and cash equialents P 1,953,013 P 542 BT
Govemment securities 20,121,221 30,700,312
Accrued interest 200,508 263,194
Accrued expenses (29,139) (41,323)

P 22, 245601 P 31,465,050

Plan assets are valued by the fund manager at fair value using the mark-to-market valuation. The
Company contributes to the fund based on a funding valuation as recommended by an actuary.

The changes in plan assets are as follows:

2020 2018
‘Balance at the beginning of the year P 3465050 F 40,304,440
Contributions during the year 2,807,687 1,558,815
Retirernant benefits paid {13,448,276) (13.027.934)
Income eamed 1,421,160 2,538,739

P 22245601 P 31,465,050




Salary projection rate B% 5%
Mumber of lives covened 59 52
Funding method Project unit credil
Mortality rate The 2001 C50 Ganerational
(Scale AA, Society of Actuaries)
Disability rate The Disability Study, Period 2, Benefit 5
(Society of Actuaries)

30. Income Taxes

The major components of provision for income tax for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019
are as fallows:

. 2020 2018

Cument P 18,726,518 P 47,341,122

Deferred (1,233,248) (11.517)
P 17,483,270 P 47,329,605
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The changes in present value of defined benefit obligation are as follows:
2000 2018
Balance ai the beginning of the year P 31,465,050 P 40,354 440
Curmen senice cosi 3,682 963 1,403,834
Retirement benefils pald (13,448, 276) (13,027 534)
Interast expense 45 834 2 694 710
P 22245601 P 31,465,050
Actuarial assumptions used to determine retirement banefits are as follows:
= 2020 2019
Fate of investrmant 5% %

— The reconciiation of the provision for income tax to the taxable income computed at the applicable
statuiory tax rates s as follows:

2020 2018

Statutory income tax P 20481704 P 64,014,535
Adjustmients for:

Mon-taxable income and income subject 1o final fax (2,988, 434) (16,685,330)

Aclual provision for income tax P 17483270 P 47 329605
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Significant compenents of the Company’s deferred tax assets recognized in the financial statements
is as follows:

2020 2014
Deferred Tax Assats
Allowance for impalment
Reinsurance assais P 5282 P
Premium recaivables 383,226 -
Effiect of PFRS 18 295,302 11,517
Unrealized loss on foreign exchange 39,310 -
1,244 TEG 11,517
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Ravaluation resene on property and eguipment 10,035,722 10,005,722
Met Deferred Tax Liabilities P B 790,956 P 10024205

Corporate Recovery and Tax Incentivas for Enterprises (CREATE) Act

On February 1, 2021, the Bicameral Conference Committee, approved the House Bill No. 4157 and
Senate Bill No.1357 (the CREATE) which seeks to reduce the corporate income tax rates and to
rationafize the current fiscal incentives by making it time-bound, targeted and performance-based.
CREATE pursues to dynamically fight the effects of COVID-19 and help businesses o recover as
quickly as possible.

Amang the reforms provided under the CREATE Act are the following:
. Reduction in current income tax rate effective July 1, 2020 as follows:

» Those with assets amounting to P100 million and below, and with taxable income
equivalent to PS million and below will be subjected to a 20% tax rate

* Those with assets above P100 million or those with taxable income amounting to
mare than PS5 million will be subjected to a 25% tax rale

Effective July 1, 2020 until June 30, 2023, the MCIT rate shall be one percent (1%)

In accordance with PAS 12- Income taxes, if a bill is passed into law after the reporting date
but before the issuance of the audited financial statements, it is treated as a non-adjusting
event, hence the Company still applied the 30% statutory tax rate in the calculation of income
taxes,

With the issuance of RR No. 5-2021 “Implementing Rules and Regulations of Republic Act No. 11534
or CREATE Act”, with retroactive effect on income tax due for the taxable year 2020, the Company
will be filing its Income Tax using the applicable Transitory Rate of 27.5%. The impact of CREATE
Act to account balances as at and for the year ended December 31, 2020 is as follows:

Befone Increase

______ CREATE CREATE (Decrease)

Deferred Tax Assets P 1244766 P 1141995 P (102,771)

Income Tax Payakie 7,706,535 6,145,992 (1,560 543)
income Tax Expense

Current 18,726,518 17,165,976 {1,560,543)

Defamed (1,233,249) (1,130,479) 102,71
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31. Restatements

The financial statements provide comparative information with respect 1o the previcus period. In
addition, the Company presents an additional statement of financial position at the baginning of the
earfiest period presented when there is a retrospective apphcation of an accounting policy, a
retrospective restatement, or a reclassification of items in the financial statements. An additicnal
statement of financial position as at January 1, 2015 is presented in thesa financial statements due
to retrospective adjustments as disclosed below.

Stafements of Financial Posiion

Decamber 31, 2018 Jaruary 1, 2013
Baarce Balarce
& prndously Baance 58 predously Balancs
tepoted  Reclassdcaion i adusind rmported  Reclassicaton &5 adusied
ASBETS
iCash and cash equhalents 1M B P ST P A 3BT MATHES P MINEM) P 140504 (82
Shor-term imestnents - SRR 25 83,162 - H1HEM HAEE
Fnanaal Assels
Aoadable-fr-Sabe (AF5) - 50T 468 25,4007 468 . 513,118 353 1E
Hiefg-io-hlatnty (HTM) 4E7 468 T8 (rac =R 1R A1 8T 6 (158,304, 52 S A5 (06
Loans and Recenabies - 2,400 000 2 400,000 - 2.400,000 240,000
hsurarce bilarces sosabie TARHTIS  (@TMY TRRSET SSES20ET  (NGANSMEN  a1T4.588
Rainguance assets - 14, M5.355 136,365,385 - 05T, 158 A1 06T 15
Dilemed acqusion costs 636 28 G B3L 4B T 485 TES TLABE TS
Accred imasimend income 1,285,060 1,285,060 1382642 1,382 642
Iasimant propady - 22, 188 280 223,162 80 . 173,868, 350 173,865 350
Defemed tax ameet 2330 e 11,597 120 755 (1,270, TE5) -
Property B equpment 1HSEAST (MM 06HTHE  D0MIM 21070488 108,991,546
Dther assets 154062411 (138 119.488) TGEIES  1ETOETES (116548350 10,215, 280
LIABILITEES ARD ECHLATY
Peser for Unessmed Pramiums 3855031 - 48 500, 3 FiE TR - JTE TG 474
Frsurance Claims Payabie 110,583, 185 16,658,552 e B R 1y 14,001,072 13,570 861
Accounts Payabla
ard Acenued Expenses 133,540 508 1808 85 12185 511 e, 216 B - HE 2EEN
Reingueances Lisbises . 35,530,635 35,530,638 15 B35 314 3,675 A7 550 3
Defemad Commission Fooma 12 642,734 128274 - prd: el 12 M2 E8
Defered {0 babdites §L0%E TR nmara 038 T 10ms e
Leskss labally - 557.5M BTN - - -
Shary Capital 4000, 00, 201 . 400,000 000 350,000,000 350,000,000
Contrituted Surius 350,000 350,000 . 350,000 350,000
Feraiuaton Resens on
Propery andequipment - Met 207252600 (LA  ZMAABC SO0 (66BN 24iEM
AFS Financial Agsely {5,562 455) {8474 B30} (14,007 288) {2,865, 054) [1.270,755) 4,235,848
FRutainad Eamings - Dacember 31 416 Bl T4 173,425, 850 B804 435 3T 610,402 2 G50, 5 AT 250 0




Statement of Comprahansive Income

December 31, 2019
Balance
a5 prewisly Balance
reporied  Reclassiication 85 adusied

FTHE &1 21 P P TE9B41,211

45,800,000 45,800,000

P 11928032 P 46773128 P 166,053,510

Reclassification of Cash Eguivalents to Shom-term Invesiments due o maturities
exceeding 3 months;

Reclassification of Insurance Balance Receivables to Other Assets and Reinsurance
Assets to reflect the nature of transaction;

Reclassification of Held-to-Malurity Investments to Available-for-Sale and Investment
Property to reflect the nature of the accounts;

Reclassification of Other Assets to Deferred Acquisition Cost and Reinsurance Assels o
reflect the nature of the accounts;

Reclassification of Defermed Tax Asset to Revaluation Reserve on AFS to derecognize the
tax effect of the decrease in fair value of investment in available-for-sale;

Recognition of Right-of-Use-Asset, Deferred Tax Assets, Liabilities and Expenses under
PFRS 16:

Reclassification of Reinsurance Assets lo Insurance Claims Payable to reflect the nature
of the account:

Reclassification of recognized Revaluation Reserve arising from increase in fair value of
Investment Property to Retained Eamings:

Reversal of claimed Creditable Withholding Tax to correct the amount of Income Tax
Payable;

Reclassification of Revaluation Reserve on Investiment Property to Investment Income

The Company applied the temporary exemption from PFRS 9 as permitted by the amendments
to PFRS 4 Applying PFRS 9 Financlal instruments wilth PFRS 4 Inswance Coniracts issued in
September 2018. The temporary exemption permits entities whose activities are predominantly
connected with insurance to continue applying PAS 39 rather than PFRS 9 for annual periods
beginning before January 1, 2025,

WESTERN GUARANTY CORPORATION
Nolies bo Financial Starements
Decamber 31, 2020 and 2009
Page 51
Reseriies 3
Commission income 28,559,353 - 28,558,253
Imesiman income 8,431,503 - 9,431 503
Linrealized fair value gain on imesimienl properies -
Claims, kosses and commission (452, 505, 160 - (452,805, 180)
General and adminisirative expenses {188, 305, 383) (38,385) (188,343,773
inCome fax expense 47, 341.122) 11,817 (4T, 326, 605
el income
In 2019, the financial statements were restated from the amounts previously reported to reflect the
following adjustments:
1
i,
i,
v,
V.
Wi
Wil
wili
in.
X
32. Other Significant Matters
1. Applying PFRS § Fingncial Instruments with PFRS 4 Insurance Caniracts (Amendments to IFRS
Cualifying for femporary exempiion from PFRE 9
— |
—
-
==
—
=
- |
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The assessment for whether a reporting entity’s activities are predominantly connected with
insurance is based on the liabilities connected with insurance in proportion o the entity’s total
liabilities. An entity may elect the temporary exemption if, and only if:

= The carrying amount of its liabilities arising from contracts within the scope of PFRS 4 is
significant compared to the total carrying amount of all its kabilities; and
= The percentage of the tolal carrying amount of its liabilities connected with insurance relative
to the total carryving amount of all of its liabilties is:
= Greater than 80 percent; or
¥ Less than or equal to 30 percent but greater than BO percent, and the insurer does not
engage in a significant activity unconnected with insurance.

The predominance assessment is performed using the carrying amounts of liabilites reported on
the statement of financial position at the annual reporting December 31, 2018. Applying the
requirements, the Company performed the predominance assessment using the Company's
statemant of financial positon as of Decambear 31, 2018

The Company concluded that it qualified for the temporary exemption from PFRS 9 because its
activities are predominantly connected with insurance. As atl December 31, 2018, the Company's
gross liabilities arising from contracts within the scope of PFRS 4 represented 81% of the total
camying amount of all its liabilities, and the Company did not engage into any significant activities
not connected with insurance. Since December 31, 2018, there has been no change in the
activities of the Company that requires reassessment of the use of the temporary exemption.

Fair valve disclosures

The table below presents an analysis of the fair valve of classes of financial assets as of
December 31, 2020, as well as the coresponding change in fair value for the year ended
December 31, 2020, In the table, the amortized costs of cash and cash equivalents and shori-
term receivables have been used as reasonable approximations of fair value. The financial
assats are divided into two calegornes:

# Azzels on which contractual cash flows represent Solely Payments of Principal and Interest
(SPP1), excluding any financial assels that are held for trading or that are managed and
whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis; and

« Al financial assels other than thase specified in SPPl above (iLe. those for which
contractual cash flows do not represent SPPI, assels that are held for trading and assets
that are managed and whose parformance s evaluated on a fair value basis).

SPP1 firancial asseis Criher financial aszals

Fair walue Fair vakua

. Fﬂr'-lua_ d'-u? - Fai vl change
Cash and cash equinglenis® P 111824675 P F - P -
Shori-ferm imestments 24,855 383 - - -

Financial assels at amotied cost:

HIM 300,789,135 . . .
AFS = - 25 522 HE4 =
Loans and recehables 2,400,000 . . .
P 41006173 P P 2550054 P :

*meciuding cash on hand P 810,000

Credit Rigk Disclosures

The following table shows the camrying amounts of the SPPI assets in accordance with PAS 39
categories by credit risk rating grades reported to key management personnel. The carmying
amounts are measured in accordance with PAS 38, For assels measured at amortized cost, the
carrying amount shown below is before any allowance for impairment losses.
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Given the Company's discussion on managing credit risks as disclosed under Mole 7, provided

below is the Company's assessment of its SPP assets:

Todal Hiih " Lot

Cash and cash equialents” P 111,EB24675 P P 111,824 675

Shor-term imesiments 24 E95 363 24 895 383
HTM:

Gowmment securites 285,783,135 785,789,135

Corporale bonds 15,000,000 15,000,000

Loans and recenablas 2,400,000 2,400,000

P 430903173 P 4355909 173

“swcluding caal an hand P2.E10.000

The following table provides information on the fair value and carrying amount under PAS 39 for
those SPPI assets that have low credit risk as determined by the Company. The camying
amounts are measured in accordance with PAS 39, For assets measured at amortized cost, the
carrying amount shown |5 before any allowance for impairment koss,

Fair value  Camying amount

Cash and cash equnalenis®

111824875 P 111,824 675

S hort-term invesiments 24 BOS 383 24,895,363
HTM:
Gowernmend securities 296,051, 205 285 789, 135
Comporate bonds 15,553,558 15,000,000
Loans and receivables 2400, 000 2,400,000
o450 724881 P 430909173
‘sxchuding cash on fand P2, 810 000
Contingencies

In the normal course of business, the Company may become defendant in lawsuits involving
settiernent of insurance claims. The Company recognized adequate provisions in s books fo
cover possible losses that may be incurred on these claims. In the opinion of management,
liabilities arising from these claims, if any, will net have material effect on the Company’s financial
position and will have no material impact in the financial statements, taken as a whole

Leass Agreaments
The Company is a lessee (o the following lease agreements:

(i} Coniract of lease for its head office located at Quintin Paredes 51, in Binondo, Manila;
{ii} Contract of leasa for its Branch Office located at Cebu City;
(i} Contract of lease for its Branch Office located at Santiage City, Isabala;

(iv) Contract of lease for its Branch Office located at Santa Rosa City, Laguna,

(v} Coniract of lease for its Branch Office located at Dagupan City, Pangasinan;
{(vi) Contract of lease for its Branch Office located at Gen, Hughes Street, lkoilo City;

{vii} Confract of lease for its Branch Office located at Cagayan de Oro
{wiii) Contract of lease for its Branch Office located at Bajada, Davao City

The lease terms are for the period of 1 to 4 years. Significant terms and conditions of the lease
confracts include (i) payment of monthly rent (i) Payment of security deposit (i) Annual
escalation clause of rental rates () Fit-out period and (v) restriction of use, among others,
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Lease lability
Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the period:
2020 2018
Balance at beginning of year P B6T5M P -
Lease inceplions 4 630 258 476 952
Interest expense on lease liabilities 240,112 47,242
Cash flows:
Principal (5:84,080) {409, 381)
Interest (148,218) (47,242)
Balance at end of year 4,713,661 567,571
Current portion 2,205,182 522,154
Non-currant portion P 2508478 P 45 417
Right-of-Use assel
The movement of right-of-use asset is as follows:
- 2020 2019
Cost
Balance at beginning of year P g7e952 P -
Additions duning the year 4,639,255 876,852
Balance at end of year 5,616,207 976,852
Accumulated depreciation
Balance at baginning of year 447,770 -
Prossions 1,439,116 447 770
Balance at end of year 1,686,886 447,770

P 378931 P 529,182

Amounts recognized in slatlement of comprehensive income
Set out below, are the amounts recognized in the statement of comprehensive income:

2020 2019
‘Rent expense relating to Shor4enm leases P 10,129,976 P 15411351
Depreciation expense of ight-ofuse asset 1,439,116 447 770
inlenes] axpanse on lease Rability 240,112 47 242

The maturity analysis of undiscounted lease payments including shori-term leases is as follows:

2020 2019
1 year P 2953182 P B,35307Q
more than 1 year to 2 years 1,602,765 45 417
miore than 2 years o 3 years 805, T14

P 65461661 P B395406




WESTERN GUARANTY CORPORATION
Moles b Financial Stalemants
Decamber 31, 2020 ang 2015

Page 55

--------------------------------------

The Company's current assets and current liabilities are presented below.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

2020 2018

Current Assats
Cash and Cash Equivalenis 114,634, 675 144 361,207
Shon-term Investments 24 885 363 25823 182
Insurance and Reingurance Agssets 1,090, 641,858 B5E, 541 026
Financial Assets - HTM S8, 58T 420 107,500,000
Loans and Receivables 2,400,000 2,400,000
Deferred Acguisition Cost 108,131,045 G353 635 248
Acenied Imestment Income 1,834, 512 1,285,080
Ofther Assets 4,679,736 5,866,050
P 1,446 BOS 508 P 1,239 541,773

Current Liabilities

Reserve for Uneamed Premiums 380,452,128 348, 680,331
ingurance Claims Fayable 321,200,009 127,241, 747
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 128,398,464 142,185,511
Reinsurance Liabilifies 62,073,641 35,530,635
Deferred Commission income 12,063,060 12,642 734
Lease Liability 2,205,182 522 154

916,392,484 666,803,112

An asset is cumment when it is:

for at least twelve months after the end of the reporting pericd.

The Company classifies all other assets as noncurrent

A liability s current when:

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current,

5. Effects of COVID-19 Pandemic

Itis expecied to be settled in normal operaling cycle;

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

It s due to be settled within bvelve months after the end of the repering pericd; or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settliement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the end of the reporting period.

Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;
Held primarily for the purpose of trading; -

Expected to be realized within twelve months after the end of the reporting period; or
Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used 1o settle a liability

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared a global pandemic 25 a resull of the
increasing number of COVID-18 cases worldwide. This was followed by the issuance of
Presidential Proclamation Order No. 829 declaring a State of Calamity in the Country from the

COVID-18 outbreak.
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Different quarantine classifications were imposed nationwide which resulted to disruptions in
business and economic activites and their impact on business continue to evolve. Internally, the
Company continues 1o adapt to these including implementation of the following:

* Work-from-home arrangement for certain office personnel;
* Oniline meetings and discussions with officers and employees;
* Use of mobile banking and online platiorms for certain financial transactions;

Considering the evolving nature of this outbreak, the Company continues to monitor the situation
and will take further actions as necessary and appropriate in response to these economic
disruptions and other consequences.

33. Supplementary Information Required under Revenue Regulations 15-2010

The Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR) issued Revenue Regulations 15-2010 which requires
additional tax information to be disclosed in the Notes to Financial Statements. The following
information covering the calendar year ended December 31, 2020 iz presented in compliance
thereta,

= The output tax on premiums declared in the Company’s 2020 VAT returns amounted to
P53,815,296 based on gross receipts of P448,294,135.

The Company pays VAT output tax based on amount collected. Furthermare, premiums from
reinsurance business are exempt from VAT in accordance with RR 4-2007,

+« The VAT input tax claimed is broken down as follows:

‘Balance at the beginnning of the year P
Cument year domestic purchases/payments for,
Goods ;
Serdces 27,960,188
Applied against cutput tan (27 B89, 188)
P .

= The premium tax on personal accident insurance paid and accrued amounted to P1,845,800.
= The documentary stamp tax paidiacerued for insurance policies amounted to P35 588 856,

* The amounts of withholding tax payments, by category are as follows:

Expanded withholding fax P 16,630,544
Tax on compensation and bensfits 6,403 880
Final tax 156 558

= The details of taxes and licenses presented under administrative expanses in the Company's
statement of comprehensive income ane as follows:

Local business (axes P 044616

Real estate tax 00,218

Other fees and licenses 1,560,811
P 3204545




The Board of Directors and Stockholders
WESTERN GUARANTY CORPORATION

11" Floor, ETY Building, 484 Quintin Paredes St.
Binondo, Manila

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of WESTERN GUARANTY
CORPORATION as at and for the year ended December 31, 2020, on which we
have rendered the attached report dated July 1, 2021. Our audit was made for the
purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

The information contained in “Schedule of Retained Earnings Available for Dividend
Declaration” is the responsibility of the Company's management. This schedule is
presented for purposes of additional analysis and not a required part of the basic
financial statements but supplementary information required by the Revised
Securities Regulation Code Rule 68. Such information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in our audit and in our opinion, is faidy stated in all,
matenal respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

R. R. TAN AND ASSOCIATES, CPAs

By: 6;;;| ER NIMITZ F. SALVADOR

Fartner

CPA Certificate Mo, 01285586

Tax Identification Mo, 307-838-154

PTR Mo. 6514808, February 2, 2021, Pasig City

SEC Accreditation Mo. 1812-A, valid until July 23, 2023

BIR Accreditation Mo. 07-000251-003-2019, valid until June 12, 2022
IC Accreditation No. 129558-IC, valid until March 1, 2025

July 1, 2021

Unit 1705, Anbel Global Comporate Canter
R. R. TAN & ASSOCIATES, CPAs Pasia Ok, Phipines 1805 T
HHJFH.-?E::?: 32; Faoc: (533) 9638-3430
PRC-BOA Reg. Mo, 0132, valid wntil Decernber 31, 2021
SEC Accreditation Mo 0394-F, vasd unsi July 23, 2023
BIR Accreditation No. 07-100015-001-2018, valid until Saptember 12, 2023
IC Accreditation No. D132.4C. valid untl November 14, 2024
E Independent Auditors® Report on Other Regulatory Requirements
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WESTERN GUARANTY CORPORATION
SCHEDULE OF RETAINED EARMINGE AVAILABLE FOR DVIDEND DECLARATION
DECEMBER 31, 2020

Unappropriated Retained Earnings, beginning P E02/688.740

Prior period adjustmonts =
Unappropriated Retalned Earmings, as
adjusted, beginning F02 688,740

Add: Met income aciually camedirealized during the period
Net income during the period closed to retained camings 50, T7R.07S

Less Hon-actualunrealized income nel of lax -
Equity in net income of associabefent venture -
Unrealized foreign sxchage gain = nat (excep! these atiibutable

ta cash and cash equivalents) -
Unrealized achuasial gain -

Fair value adjustment (mark-1c-markeat gaing) .
Fair valua adjustment of investment proparty resulling to gain -
Recognized defered iax assel that decreasad the nel income 1,233,248

Adistmani dus o deviation from PFRE/GAAR - gain -
Other unrealzed gains of adjusiments to the retained eamings as
a resault of certain ransactions sccounted for under PFRS

Subiotal 1,233 248
A Mon-actual losses

Fair valpe adjusiment (mark-ic-markat lpssas) -

Adjustmient dus 1o devinon from PFRSGAAP - loss -

Change in deferred tax Rabdities that decreased net incoms -
Sulbatal —_—
Mot Income actually earned during the periad 45 545 026
Add(less)

Dividend declarations during the periad -

Appropriations of retained eamings during the year .

Reversals of appropriafions ¥

Treasury shares -
Sublatal -
Unappropriated Retained Eamings, as

adjusted, anding P G52.234 556




